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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008
(in thousands, except share data)

 
    2009   2008  
   (unaudited)     
Assets    
Real estate investments at cost:    

Land   $1,001,137   923,062  
Buildings and improvements    2,099,905   1,974,093  
Properties in development    1,051,514   1,078,885  

    
 

  
 

   4,152,556   3,976,040  
Less: accumulated depreciation    607,944   554,595  

    
 

  
 

   3,544,612   3,421,445  
Operating properties held for sale, net    37,329   66,447  
Investments in real estate partnerships    338,107   383,408  

    
 

  
 

Net real estate investments    3,920,048   3,871,300  
Cash and cash equivalents    126,792   21,533  
Notes receivable    27,988   31,438  
Tenant receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,461 and $1,593 at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,

respectively    69,076   84,096  
Other receivables    —     19,700  
Deferred costs, less accumulated amortization of $55,115 and $51,549 at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively    56,201   57,477  
Acquired lease intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $11,136 and $11,204 at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,

respectively    11,408   12,903  
Other assets    44,647   43,928  

    
 

  
 

Total assets   $4,256,160   4,142,375  
    

 

  

 

Liabilities and Equity    
Liabilities:    

Notes payable   $1,841,454   1,837,904  
Unsecured credit facilities    227,667   297,667  
Accounts payable and other liabilities    113,006   141,395  
Derivative instruments, at fair value    27,577   83,691  
Acquired lease intangible liabilities, less accumulated accretion of $8,807 and $8,829 at June 30, 2009 and December 31,

2008, respectively    6,874   7,865  
Tenants’ security and escrow deposits    11,097   11,571  

    
 

  
 

Total liabilities    2,227,675   2,380,093  
    

 
  

 

Commitments and contingencies    
Equity:    

Stockholders’ equity:    
Preferred stock, $.01 par value per share, 30,000,000 shares authorized; 11,000,000 Series 3-5 shares issued and outstanding

at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 with liquidation preferences of $25 per share    275,000   275,000  
Common stock $.01 par value per share, 150,000,000 shares authorized; 85,703,371 and 75,634,881 shares issued at June 30,

2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively    857   756  
Treasury stock at cost, 5,661,520 and 5,598,211 shares held at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively    (111,414)  (111,414) 
Additional paid in capital    2,092,351   1,778,265  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (54,399)  (90,975) 
Distributions in excess of net income    (240,417)  (155,057) 

    
 

  
 

Total stockholders’ equity    1,961,978   1,696,575  
    

 
  

 

Noncontrolling interests:    
Preferred units, aggregate redemption value of $50,000 at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008    49,158   49,158  
Exchangeable operating partnership units, aggregate redemption value of $16,345 and $21,865 at June 30, 2009 and

December 31, 2008, respectively    8,298   8,569  
Limited partners’ interest in consolidated partnerships    9,051   7,980  

    
 

  
 

Total noncontrolling interests    66,507   65,707  
    

 
  

 

Total equity    2,028,485   1,762,282  
    

 
  

 

Total liabilities and equity   $4,256,160   4,142,375  
    

 

  

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
 
   2009   2008  
Revenues:    

Minimum rent   $ 86,341   84,906  
Percentage rent    307   281  
Recoveries from tenants and other income    22,915   23,767  
Management, acquisition, and other fees    6,898   11,966  

    
 

  
 

Total revenues    116,461   120,920  
    

 
  

 

Operating expenses:    
Depreciation and amortization    29,843   26,294  
Operating and maintenance    15,547   14,526  
General and administrative    9,292   13,153  
Real estate taxes    14,158   12,073  
Provision for doubtful accounts    4,769   53  
Other expenses    929   669  

    
 

  
 

Total operating expenses    74,538   66,768  
    

 
  

 

Other expense (income):    
Interest expense, net of interest income of $823 and $657 in 2009 and 2008, respectively    25,640   23,453  
Provision for impairment    2,369   —    

    
 

  
 

Total other expense (income)    28,009   23,453  
    

 
  

 

Income before equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships    13,914   30,699  
Equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships    (26,213)  1,122  

    
 

  
 

Income (loss) from continuing operations    (12,299)  31,821  
Discontinued operations, net:    

Operating income from discontinued operations    995   1,573  
Gain on sale of operating properties and properties in development    19   4,792  

    
 

  
 

Income from discontinued operations    1,014   6,365  
    

 
  

 

Net income (loss)    (11,285)  38,186  
Noncontrolling interests:    

Preferred units    (931)  (931) 
Exchangeable operating partnership units    92   (245) 
Limited partners’ interest in consolidated partnerships    (137)  (225) 

    
 

  
 

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests    (976)  (1,401) 
    

 
  

 

Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interests    (12,261)  36,785  
Preferred stock dividends    (4,919)  (4,919) 

    
 

  
 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders   $ (17,180)  31,866  
    

 

  

 

Income (loss) per common share - basic:    
Continuing operations   $ (0.24)  0.36  
Discontinued operations    0.01   0.09  

    
 

  
 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders per share   $ (0.23)  0.45  
    

 

  

 

Income (loss) per common share - diluted:    
Continuing operations   $ (0.24)  0.36  
Discontinued operations    0.01   0.09  

    
 

  
 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders per share   $ (0.23)  0.45  
    

 

  

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
 
   2009   2008  
Revenues:    

Minimum rent   $173,407   167,941  
Percentage rent    1,007   1,081  
Recoveries from tenants and other income    48,286   47,917  
Management, acquisition, and other fees    14,655   20,413  

    
 

  
 

Total revenues    237,355   237,352  
    

 
  

 

Operating expenses:    
Depreciation and amortization    57,925   51,029  
Operating and maintenance    31,560   29,353  
General and administrative    25,177   27,276  
Real estate taxes    28,461   24,501  
Provision for doubtful accounts    5,269   48  
Other expenses    1,218   1,466  

    
 

  
 

Total operating expenses    149,610   133,673  
    

 
  

 

Other expense (income):    
Interest expense, net of interest income of $1,729 and $1,537 in 2009 and 2008, respectively    52,158   45,990  
Gain on sale of operating properties and properties in development    —     (2,934) 
Provision for impairment    2,369   716  

    
 

  
 

Total other expense (income)    54,527   43,772  
    

 
  

 

Income before equity in income of investments in real estate partnerships    33,218   59,907  
Equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships    (24,311)  3,757  

    
 

  
 

Income from continuing operations    8,907   63,664  
Discontinued operations, net:    

Operating income from discontinued operations    1,615   2,769  
Gain on sale of operating properties and properties in development    3,905   4,792  

    
 

  
 

Income from discontinued operations    5,520   7,561  
    

 
  

 

Net income    14,427   71,225  
Noncontrolling interests:    

Preferred units    (1,862)  (1,862) 
Exchangeable operating partnership units    (71)  (458) 
Limited partners’ interest in consolidated partnerships    (273)  (482) 

    
 

  
 

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2,206)  (2,802) 
    

 
  

 

Net income attributable to controlling interests    12,221   68,423  
Preferred stock dividends    (9,838)  (9,838) 

    
 

  
 

Net income attributable to common stockholders   $ 2,383   58,585  
    

 

  

 

Income (loss) per common share - basic:    
Continuing operations   $ (0.05)  0.73  
Discontinued operations    0.08   0.10  

    
 

  
 

Net income attributable to common stockholders per share   $ 0.03   0.83  
    

 

  

 

Income (loss) per common share - diluted:    
Continuing operations   $ (0.05)  0.73  
Discontinued operations    0.08   0.10  

    
 

  
 

Net income attributable to common stockholders per share   $ 0.03   0.83  
    

 

  

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statement of Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the six months ended June 30, 2009
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
 
                     Noncontrolling Interests        

  
Preferred

Stock  
Common

Stock  
Treasury

Stock   

Additional
Paid In
Capital   

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss   

Distributions
in Excess of
Net Income   

Total
Stockholders’

Equity   Preferred Units  

Exchangeable
Operating

Partnership
Units   

Limited
Partners’
Interest in

Consolidated
Partnerships   

Total
Noncontrolling

Interests   
Total

Equity  
Balance at

December 31, 2008  $ 275,000 756 (111,414)  1,778,265   (90,975)  (155,057)  1,696,575   49,158   8,569   7,980   65,707   1,762,282  
Comprehensive Income:             

Net income   —   —   —     —     —     12,221   12,221   1,862   71   273   2,206   14,427  
Loss on

settlement of
derivative
instruments   —   —   —     —     (19,861)  —     (19,861)  —     (116)  —     (116)  (19,977) 

Amortization of
loss on
derivative
instruments   —   —   —     —     649   —     649   —     4   —     4   653  

Change in fair
value of
derivative
instruments   —   —   —     —     55,788   —     55,788   —     325   —     325   56,113  

        
 

     
 

  
 

Total comprehensive
income        48,797      2,419   51,216  

Restricted stock
amortization   —   —   —     3,235   —     —     3,235   —     —     —     —     3,235  

Common stock
redeemed for taxes
withheld for stock
based compensation,
net   —   —   —     (2,255)  —     —     (2,255)  —     —     —     —     (2,255) 

Common stock issued
for dividend
reinvestment plan   —   1 —     1,784   —     —     1,785   —     —     —     —     1,785  

Tax benefit for issuance
of stock options   —   —   —     553   —     —     553   —     —     —     —     553  

Common stock issued
for stock offering,
net of issuance costs   —   100 —     310,769   —     —     310,869   —     —     —     —     310,869  

Contributions from
partners   —   —   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     1,118   1,118   1,118  

Distributions to partners   —   —   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (320)  (320)  (320) 
Cash dividends declared:             

Preferred
stock/unit   —   —   —     —     —     (9,838)  (9,838)  (1,862)  —     —     (1,862)  (11,700) 

Common
stock/unit
($1.1875 per
share)   —   —   —     —     —     (87,743)  (87,743)  —     (555)  —     (555)  (88,298) 

       
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Balance at June 30,
2009  $ 275,000 857 (111,414)  2,092,351   (54,399)  (240,417)  1,961,978   49,158   8,298   9,051   66,507   2,028,485  

       

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands)

(unaudited)
 
   2009   2008  
Cash flows from operating activities:    

Net income   $ 14,427   71,225  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    57,959   52,554  
Deferred loan cost and debt premium amortization    2,219   2,050  
Above and below market lease intangibles amortization and accretion    (940)  (1,330) 
Stock-based compensation, net of capitalization    1,999   7,100  
Equity in (income) loss of investments in real estate partnerships    24,311   (3,757) 
Net gain on sale of properties    (3,905)  (7,758) 
Provision for doubtful accounts    5,269   48  
Provision for impairment    2,369   716  
Distribution of earnings from operations of investments in real estate partnerships    17,790   18,715  
Settlement of derivative instruments    (19,977)  —    
Changes in assets and liabilities:    

Tenant receivables    10,346   3,557  
Other receivables    19,700   —    
Deferred leasing costs    (4,299)  (5,319) 
Other assets    (3,344)  (9,388) 
Accounts payable and other liabilities    (20,100)  (14,954) 
Tenants’ security and escrow deposits    (431)  491  

    
 

  
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    103,393   113,950  
    

 
  

 

Cash flows from investing activities:    
Development of real estate including acquisition of land    (92,680)  (227,603) 
Proceeds from sale of real estate investments    9,648   52,596  
Collection of notes receivable    12,390   24,244  
Investments in real estate partnerships    (17,159)  (12,597) 
Distributions received from investments in real estate partnerships    2,986   8,857  

    
 

  
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (84,815)  (154,503) 
    

 
  

 

Cash flows from financing activities:    
Net proceeds from common stock issuance    310,871   1,017  
Distributions to limited partners in consolidated partnerships, net    (310)  (10,895) 
Distributions to exchangeable operating partnership unit holders    (555)  (671) 
Distributions to preferred unit holders    (1,862)  (1,862) 
Dividends paid to common stockholders    (85,960)  (99,011) 
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders    (9,838)  (9,838) 
Repayment of fixed rate unsecured notes    (50,000)  —    
(Repayment of) proceeds from unsecured credit facilities    (70,000)  126,667  
Proceeds from notes payable    —     62,500  
Repayment of notes payable    (3,029)  (200) 
Scheduled principal payments    (2,611)  (2,326) 
Payment of loan costs    (25)  (1,892) 

    
 

  
 

Net cash provided by financing activities    86,681   63,489  
    

 
  

 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    105,259   22,936  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period    21,533   18,668  

    
 

  
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period   $126,792   41,604  
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands)

(unaudited)
 
   2009   2008  
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:     
Cash paid for interest (net of capitalized interest of $11,918 and $18,838 in 2009 and 2008, respectively)   $53,563  46,026  

       

 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:     
Common stock issued for partnership units exchanged   $ —    232  

       

 

Real estate received through distribution in kind   $80,459  —    
       

 

Mortgage loans assumed through distribution in kind   $59,061  —    
       

 

Change in fair value of derivative instruments   $56,113  (499) 
       

 

Common stock issued for dividend reinvestment plan   $ 1,782  2,143  
       

 

Stock-based compensation capitalized   $ 1,393  4,042  
       

 

Contributions from limited partners in consolidated partnerships, net   $ 1,108  145  
       

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Regency Centers Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 

 (a) Organization and Principles of Consolidation

General

Regency Centers Corporation (“Regency” or the “Company”) began its operations as a Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) in 1993 and is the
managing general partner of its operating partnership, Regency Centers, L.P. (“RCLP” or the “Partnership”). Regency currently owns approximately
99% of the outstanding common partnership units (“Units”) of the Partnership. Regency engages in the ownership, management, leasing, acquisition,
and development of retail shopping centers through the Partnership, and has no other assets or liabilities other than through its investment in the
Partnership. At June 30, 2009, the Partnership directly owned 226 retail shopping centers and held partial interests in an additional 183 retail
shopping centers through investments in real estate partnerships (also referred to as co-investment partnerships or joint ventures).

Estimates, Risks, and Uncertainties

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires Regency’s management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The most significant estimates in the Company’s financial statements relate to the carrying values of its investments in real estate
including its shopping centers, properties in development and its unconsolidated investments in real estate partnerships, tenant receivables, net, and
derivative instruments. Each of these items could be significantly affected by the current economic recession.

Because of the adverse conditions that exist in the real estate markets, as well as, the credit and financial markets, it is possible that the estimates and
assumptions that have been utilized in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements could change significantly. Specifically as it relates to
the Company’s business, the current economic recession is expected to result in a higher level of retail store closings nationally, which could reduce
the demand for leasing space in the Company’s shopping centers and result in a decline in occupancy and rental revenues in its real estate portfolio.
The lack of available credit in the commercial real estate market is causing a decline in the values of commercial real estate nationally and the
Company’s ability to sell shopping centers to raise capital. A reduction in the demand for new retail space and capital availability have caused the
Company to significantly reduce its new shopping center development program until markets become less volatile.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Partnership, its wholly owned subsidiaries, and
consolidated partnerships in which the Company has a controlling ownership interest. All significant inter-company balances and transactions are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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Regency Centers Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
 

Ownership of the Company

Regency has a single class of common stock outstanding and three series of preferred stock outstanding (“Series 3, 4, and 5 Preferred Stock”). The
dividends on the Series 3, 4, and 5 Preferred Stock are cumulative and payable in arrears on the last day of each calendar quarter. The Company
owns corresponding Series 3, 4, and 5 preferred unit interests (“Series 3, 4, and 5 Preferred Units”) in the Partnership that entitle the Company to
income and distributions from the Partnership in amounts equal to the dividends paid on the Company’s Series 3, 4, and 5 Preferred Stock.

Ownership of the Operating Partnership

The Partnership’s capital includes general and limited common Partnership Units, Series 3, 4, and 5 Preferred Units owned by the Company, and
Series D Preferred Units owned by institutional investors. At June 30, 2009, the Company owned approximately 99% or 80,041,851 Partnership
Units of the total 80,510,062 Partnership Units outstanding.

Net income and distributions of the Partnership are allocable first to the Preferred Units, and the remaining amounts to the general and limited
common Partnership Units in accordance with their ownership percentage. The Series 3, 4, and 5 Preferred Units owned by the Company are
eliminated in consolidation.

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company consolidates all entities in which it holds a controlling financial interest in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 51, as amended, “Consolidated Financial Statements” (“ARB 51”). A controlling financial
interest is typically attributable to the entity with a majority voting interest per ARB 51. However, investments in real estate partnerships not
controlled by the Company are accounted for under the equity method. The Company has evaluated its investment in the real estate partnerships and
has concluded that they are not variable interest entities as defined in FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 46(R) “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (“FIN 46(R)”). Further, the venture partners in the real estate partnerships have significant ownership rights, including approval over
operating budgets and strategic plans, capital spending, sale or financing, and admission of new partners. Upon formation of the joint ventures, the
Company also became the managing member, responsible for the day-to-day operations of the partnerships. The Company evaluated its investment
in each partnership and concluded that the other partners have substantive participating rights and, therefore, the Company has concluded that the
equity method of accounting is appropriate for these investments and they do not require consolidation under Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
Issue No. 04-5 “Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When
the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights” (“EITF 04-5”), or the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (“AICPA”) Statement of
Position (“SOP”) 78-9, “Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventures” (“SOP 78-9”). Under the equity method of accounting, investments in
real estate partnerships are initially recorded at cost, subsequently increased for additional contributions and allocations of income, and reduced for
distributions received and allocations of loss. These investments are included in the consolidated financial statements as investments in real estate
partnerships.
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Regency Centers Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
 

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements” (“Statement 160”), effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and the Company adopted Statement
160 on January 1, 2009. Per Statement 160, noncontrolling interest is the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a
parent and the ownership interests in the subsidiary that are held by owners other than the parent are noncontrolling interests. Under Statement 160,
such noncontrolling interests are reported on the consolidated balance sheets within equity, but separately from stockholders’ equity. On the
consolidated statements of operations, all of the revenues and expenses from less-than-wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries are reported in net
income, including both the amounts attributable to the Company and noncontrolling interests.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the following ownership interests held by owners other than the Company: the
preferred units in the Partnership held by third parties (“Preferred units”), the common units in the Partnership held by third parties (“Exchangeable
operating partnership units”), and the minority-owned interest held by third parties in consolidated partnerships (“Limited partners’ interest in
consolidated partnerships”). The Company has included all noncontrolling interests in permanent equity, separate from the Company’s stockholders’
equity, in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statement of Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The portion of
net income (loss) or comprehensive income (loss) attributable to these noncontrolling interests is included in net income (loss) and comprehensive
income (loss) in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statement of Equity and Comprehensive Income
(Loss).

EITF Topic D-98 “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities” (“EITF Topic D-98”), requires securities that are redeemable for cash
or other assets at the option of the holder, not solely within the control of the issuer, be classified as redeemable noncontrolling interests outside of
permanent equity in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company has evaluated the conditions as specified in paragraphs 12 to 32 of EITF Issue
No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock” (“EITF 00-19”) as it
relates to preferred units or exchangeable operating partnership units outstanding and concluded that the Company has the right to satisfy the
redemption requirements of the units by delivering unregistered preferred or common stock. Therefore, the guidance in EITF Topic D-98 does not
apply to such units. Each outstanding preferred unit and exchangeable operating partnership unit is exchangeable for one share of preferred stock or
common stock, respectively, and the unit holder cannot require redemption in cash or other assets. Limited partners’ interest in consolidated
partnerships are not redeemable by the holders.

 
 (b) Revenues

The Company leases space to tenants under agreements with varying terms. Leases are accounted for as operating leases with minimum rent
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease regardless of when payments are due. Accrued rents are included in tenant receivables.
The Company estimates the collectibility of the accounts receivable related to base rents, straight-line rents, expense reimbursements, and other
revenue taking into consideration the Company’s experience in the retail sector, available internal and external tenant credit information, payment
history, industry trends, tenant credit-worthiness, and remaining lease terms. In some cases, primarily relating to straight-
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line rents, the ultimate collection of these amounts relates to increased rents to be collected in future years which extend beyond one year. During the
three months ended June 30, 2009, the Company experienced a significant increase in tenant defaults, as well as, deterioration in tenant receivable
collection rates, as compared to historical collection rates. As a result, the Company increased its allowance for doubtful accounts to fully reserve for
these specifically identified tenant defaults and adjusted the collectibility rates used to estimate the general reserve to reflect such deterioration in
collection rates. During the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded a provision for doubtful accounts of $4.8 million and
approximately $53,000, respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and
2008, the Company recorded a provision for doubtful accounts of $5.3 million and approximately $48,000, respectively, in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The following table represents the components of tenant receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, as of June 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008 in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands):

 

   2009   2008
Straight-line rent asset, net   $38,366  37,595
Tenant receivables    18,958  29,307
CAM reimbursements    13,135  13,437
Non-tenant receivables    4,078  5,350
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts    5,461  1,593

       

Total   $69,076  84,096
       

Substantially all of the lease agreements with anchor tenants contain provisions that provide for additional rents based on tenants’ sales volume
(percentage rent) and reimbursement of the tenants’ share of real estate taxes, insurance, and common area maintenance (“CAM”) costs. Percentage
rents are recognized when the tenants achieve the specified targets as defined in their lease agreements. Recovery of real estate taxes, insurance, and
CAM costs are recognized as the respective costs are incurred in accordance with the lease agreements.

As part of the leasing process, the Company may provide the lessee with an allowance for the construction of leasehold improvements. These
leasehold improvements are capitalized and recorded as tenant improvements, and depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the improvements
or the lease term. If the allowance represents a payment for a purpose other than funding leasehold improvements, or in the event the Company is not
considered the owner of the improvements, the allowance is considered to be a lease incentive and is recognized over the lease term as a reduction of
rental revenue. Factors considered during this evaluation include, among other things, who holds legal title to the improvements as well as other
controlling rights provided by the lease agreement and provisions for substantiation of such costs (e.g. unilateral control of the tenant space during
the build-out process). Determination of the appropriate accounting for the payment of a tenant allowance is made on a lease-by-lease basis,
considering the facts and circumstances of the individual tenant lease. When the Company is the owner of the leasehold improvements, recognition
of lease revenue commences when the lessee is given possession of the leased space upon completion of tenant improvements. However, when the
leasehold improvements are owned by the tenant, the lease inception date is the date the tenant obtains possession of the leased space for purposes of
constructing its leasehold improvements.

The Company accounts for profit recognition on sales of real estate in accordance with SFAS No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate”
(“Statement 66”). In summary, profits from sales of real estate are not recognized under the full accrual method by the Company unless a sale is
consummated; the buyer’s initial and continuing investment is adequate to demonstrate a commitment to pay for the property; the Company’s
receivable, if applicable, is not subject to future subordination; the Company has transferred to the buyer the usual risks and rewards of ownership;
and the Company does not have substantial continuing involvement with the property.
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The Company sells shopping center properties to joint ventures in exchange for cash equal to the fair value of the percentage interest owned by its
partners. The Company accounts for those sales as “partial sales” and recognizes gains on those partial sales in the period the properties were sold to
the extent of the percentage interest sold under the guidance of Statement 66, and in the case of certain partnerships, applies a more restrictive
method of recognizing gains, as discussed further below. The gains and operations associated with properties sold to these partnerships are not
classified as discontinued operations because the Company continues to partially own and manage these shopping centers.

As of June 30, 2009, four of the Company’s joint ventures (“DIK-JV”) give either partner the unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and,
upon such an election, receive a distribution in-kind (“DIK”) of the assets of the partnership equal to their respective ownership interests, which
could include properties the Company sold to the partnership. The liquidation provisions would require that all of the properties owned by the
partnership be appraised to determine their respective and collective fair values. As a general rule, if the Company initiates the liquidation process,
its partner has the right to choose the first property that it will receive in liquidation with the Company having the right to choose the next property
that it will receive in liquidation. If the Company’s partner initiates the liquidation process, the order of the selection process is reversed. The process
then continues with alternating selection of properties by each partner until the balance of each partner’s capital account on a fair value basis has
been distributed. After the final selection, to the extent that the fair value of properties in the DIK-JV are not distributable in a manner that equals the
balance of each partner’s capital account, a cash payment would be made to the other partner by the partner receiving a fair value in excess of its
capital account. The partners may also elect to liquidate some or all of the properties through sales rather than through the DIK process.

The Company has concluded that these DIK dissolution provisions constitute in-substance call/put options under the guidance of Statement 66, and
represent a form of continuing involvement with respect to property that the Company has sold to these partnerships, limiting the Company’s
recognition of gain related to the partial sale. This more restrictive method of gain recognition (“Restricted Gain Method”) considers the Company’s
potential ability to receive property through a DIK on which partial gain has been recognized, and ensures, as discussed below, maximum gain
deferral upon sale to a DIK-JV. The Company has applied the Restricted Gain Method to partial sales of property to partnerships that contain
unilateral DIK provisions.

Under current guidance (Statement 66, paragraph 25), profit shall be recognized by a method determined by the nature and extent of the seller’s
continuing involvement and the profit recognized shall be reduced by the maximum exposure to loss. The Company has concluded that the
Restricted Gain Method accomplishes this objective.

Under the Restricted Gain Method, for purposes of gain deferral, the Company considers the aggregate pool of properties sold into the DIK-JV as
well as the aggregate pool of properties which will be distributed in the DIK process. As a result, upon the sale of properties to a DIK-JV, the
Company performs a hypothetical DIK liquidation assuming that it would choose only those properties that it has sold to the DIK-JV in an amount
equal to its capital account. For purposes of calculating the gain to be deferred, the Company assumes that it will select properties in a DIK
liquidation that would otherwise have generated the highest gain to the Company when originally sold to the DIK-JV. The deferred gain to be
recorded upon the
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sale of a property to a DIK-JV is calculated whenever a property is sold to the DIK-JV by the Company. During the periods when there are no
property sales to a DIK-JV, the deferred gain is not recalculated.

Because the contingency associated with the possibility of receiving a particular property back upon liquidation, which forms the basis of the
Restricted Gain Method, is not satisfied at the property level, but at the aggregate level, no gain is recognized on property sold by the DIK-JV to a
third party or received by the Company upon actual dissolution. Instead, the property received upon actual dissolution is recorded at the Company’s
historical cost investment in the DIK-JV on the date of dissolution, reduced by the deferred gain.

The Company has been engaged under agreements with its joint venture partners to provide asset management, disposition, property management,
leasing, investing, and financing services for such ventures’ shopping centers. The fees are market-based, generally calculated as a percentage of
either revenues earned or the estimated values of the properties managed or the proceeds received, and are recognized as services are rendered, when
fees due are determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

 
 (c) Real Estate Investments

Land, buildings, and improvements are recorded at cost. All specifically identifiable costs related to development activities are capitalized into
properties in development on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Properties in development are defined as properties that are in the
construction or initial lease-up process and have not reached their initial full occupancy (reaching full occupancy generally means the development is
at least 95% leased and tenants are paying rent on the newly constructed or renovated GLA unless a prescribed period of time expires since anchor
opening at which time they are no longer considered development) and are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 67, “Accounting for Costs
and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects” (“Statement 67”). In summary, Statement 67 establishes that a rental project changes from non-
operating to operating when it is substantially completed and available for occupancy. At that time, costs should no longer be capitalized. The
capitalized costs include pre-development costs essential to the development of the property, development costs, construction costs, interest costs,
real estate taxes, and allocated direct employee costs incurred during the period of development. In accordance with SFAS No. 34, “Capitalization of
Interest Cost” (“Statement 34”), interest costs are capitalized into each development project based on applying the Company’s weighted average
borrowing rate to that portion of the actual development costs expended. The Company ceases interest cost capitalization when the property is no
longer being developed or is available for occupancy upon substantial completion of tenant improvements, but in no event would the Company
capitalize interest on the project beyond 12 months after substantial completion of the building shell.
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The following table represents the components of properties in development as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands):

 

   2009   2008
Construction in process   $ 210,641  338,607
Construction complete and in lease-up    621,597  548,132
Land held for future development    219,276  192,147

       

Total   $1,051,514  1,078,886
       

Construction in process represents developments where the Company has not yet incurred at least 90% of the expected costs to complete.
Construction complete and in lease up represents developments where the Company has incurred at least 90% of the estimated costs, but is still
completing lease up and final tenant build out. Land held for future development represents projects not in construction, but identified and available
for future development if and when the market demand for a new shopping center exists.

The Company incurs costs prior to land acquisition including contract deposits, as well as legal, engineering, and other external professional fees
related to evaluating the feasibility of developing a shopping center. These pre-development costs are included in properties in development in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had capitalized pre-development costs of $7.2
million and $7.7 million, respectively, of which approximately $1.0 million and $2.3 million, respectively, were refundable deposits. If the Company
determines that the development of a particular shopping center is no longer probable, any related pre-development costs previously capitalized are
immediately expensed in other expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. During the three months ended June 30, 2009
and 2008, the Company expensed pre-development costs of approximately $148,000 and $384,000, respectively, in other expenses in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company expensed pre-
development costs of approximately $298,000 and $759,000, respectively, in other expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are recorded in operating and maintenance expense.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of up to 40 years for buildings and improvements, the shorter of
the useful life or the lease term for tenant improvements, and three to seven years for furniture and equipment.

The Company and the real estate partnerships allocate the purchase price of assets acquired (net tangible and identifiable intangible assets) and
liabilities assumed based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”
(“Statement 141”) as amended by SFAS No. 141(R) “Business Combinations” (“Statement 141(R)”) and adopted by the Company in January 2009.
Statement 141(R) provides guidance on the allocation of the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in
the acquiree. The Company’s methodology for this allocation includes estimating an “as-if vacant” fair value of the physical property, which is
allocated to land, building, and improvements. The difference between the purchase price and the “as-if vacant” fair value is allocated to intangible
assets. There are three categories of intangible assets to be considered: (i) value of in-place leases, (ii) above and below-market value of in-place
leases, and (iii) customer relationship value.

The value of in-place leases is estimated based on the value associated with the costs avoided in originating leases compared to the acquired in-place
leases as well as the value associated with lost rental and recovery revenue during the assumed lease-up period. The value of in-place leases is
recorded to amortization expense over the remaining initial term

 
13



Table of Contents

Regency Centers Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009
 

of the respective leases in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“Statement 142”).

Above-market and below-market in-place lease values for acquired properties are recorded based on the present value of the difference between
(i) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases and (ii) management’s estimate of fair market lease rates for comparable in-
place leases, measured over a period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease. The value of above-market leases is amortized as a
reduction of minimum rent over the remaining terms of the respective leases and the value of below-market leases is accreted to minimum rent over
the remaining terms of the respective leases, including below-market renewal options, if applicable, as required by Statement 142 as amended by
FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 142-3 “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets” (“FAS 142-3”) and adopted by the Company in
January 2009. FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful
life of a recognized intangible asset under Statement 142. If a tenant exercises an option to renew a lease as per the lease agreement, the Company
capitalizes any related leasing commissions and recognizes any related option fees as agreed upon. The Company does not allocate value to customer
relationship intangibles if it has pre-existing business relationships with the major retailers in the acquired property since they do not provide
incremental value over the Company’s existing relationships.

The Company and its co-investment partnerships follow the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets” (“Statement 144”). In accordance with Statement 144, the Company classifies an operating property or a property in development as
held-for-sale when the Company determines that the property is available for immediate sale in its present condition, the property is being actively
marketed for sale, and management believes it is probable that a sale will be consummated within one year. Given the nature of all real estate sales
contracts, it is not unusual for such contracts to allow prospective buyers a period of time to evaluate the property prior to formal acceptance of the
contract. In addition, certain other matters critical to the final sale, such as financing arrangements, often remain pending even upon contract
acceptance. As a result, properties under contract may not close within the expected time period, or may not close at all. Therefore, any properties
categorized as held-for-sale represent only those properties that management has determined are probable to close within the requirements set forth
in Statement 144. Operating properties held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell. The recording of depreciation and
amortization expense is suspended during the held-for-sale period. If circumstances arise that previously were considered unlikely and, as a result,
the Company decides not to sell a property previously classified as held for sale, the property is reclassified as held and used and is measured
individually at the lower of its (a) carrying amount before the property was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation and amortization
expense that would have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used or (b) the fair value at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell. Any required adjustment to the carrying amount of the property reclassified as held and used is included in income
from continuing operations in the period of the subsequent decision not to sell. If a property is reclassified as held and used, the results of operations
of the property previously reported in discontinued operations is reclassified and included in income from continuing operations for all periods
presented.
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In accordance with Statement 144 and EITF 03-13 “Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement 144 in Determining Whether to
Report Discontinued Operations” (“EITF 03-13”), when the Company sells a property or classifies a property as held-for-sale and will not have
significant continuing involvement in the operation of the property, the operations of the property are eliminated from ongoing operations and
classified in discontinued operations. In accordance with EITF 87-24 “Allocation of Interest to Discontinued Operations” (“EITF 87-24”), its
operations, including any mortgage interest and gain on sale, are reported in discontinued operations so that the operations are clearly distinguished.
Prior periods are also reclassified to reflect the operations of these properties as discontinued operations. When the Company sells operating
properties to its joint ventures or to third parties, and will continue to manage the properties, the operations and gains on sales are included in income
from continuing operations.

The Company reviews its real estate portfolio including the properties owned through co-investment partnerships for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For properties to be “held and used” for long term investment,
the Company estimates undiscounted future cash flows over the expected investment term including the estimated future value of the asset upon sale
at the end of the investment period. Future value is generally determined by applying a market-based capitalization rate to the estimated future net
operating income in the final year of the expected investment term. If after applying this method a property is determined to be impaired, the
Company determines the provision for impairment based upon applying a market capitalization rate to current estimated net operating income as if
the sale were to occur immediately. For properties “held for sale”, the Company estimates current resale values by market through appraisal
information and other market data less expected costs to sell. These methods of determining fair value can fluctuate significantly as a result of a
number of factors, including changes in the general economy of those markets in which the Company operates, the Company’s estimated holding
period of the property, tenant credit quality, and demand for new retail stores. If as a result of a change in the Company’s strategy for a specific
property which the Company owns directly or through co-investment partnerships, a property previously classified as held and used is changed to
held for sale, or if its estimated holding period changes, such change could cause the Company to evaluate that property as impaired and a provision
for impairment in relation to that property would be recorded by the Company either directly or through a reduction of the Company’s equity in
income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships. During the three months ended June 30, 2009, the Company established a provision for
impairment of $2.4 million. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company established a provision for impairment of $2.4
million and approximately $716,000, respectively.

In accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 18 “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock”
(“APB 18”) and EITF 08-6, “Equity Method Investment Accounting Considerations” (“EITF 08-6”), a loss in value of an investment under the
equity method of accounting, which is other than a temporary decline, must be recognized. To evaluate the Company’s investment in real estate
partnerships, the Company calculates the fair value of the investment by discounting estimated future cash flows over the expected term of the
investment. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, no impairment was recorded as a result of this evaluation.
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 (d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Any instruments which have an original maturity of 90 days or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents. At June 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, $3.4 million and $8.7 million, respectively, of cash was restricted through escrow agreements required for a development and
certain mortgage loans.

 
 (e) Notes Receivable

The Company records notes receivable at cost on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and interest income is accrued as earned in interest
expense, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. If a note receivable is past due, meaning the debtor is past due per
contractual obligations, the Company ceases to accrue interest income. However, in the event the debtor subsequently becomes current, the Company
will resume accruing interest. The Company evaluates the collectibility of both interest and principal for all notes receivable to determine whether
impairment exists using the present value of expected cash flows discounted at the note receivable’s effective interest rate or, alternatively, at the
observable market price of the loan or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” (“Statement 114”) as amended by SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of
a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures” (“Statement 118”) which is based on observable market prices. In the event the Company determines
a note receivable or a portion thereof is considered uncollectible, the Company records an allowance for credit loss. The Company estimates the
collectibility of notes receivable taking into consideration the Company’s experience in the retail sector, available internal and external credit
information, payment history, market and industry trends, and debtor credit-worthiness. See Note 5 for further discussion.

 
 (f) Deferred Costs

Deferred costs include leasing costs and loan costs, net of accumulated amortization. Such costs are amortized over the periods through lease
expiration or loan maturity, respectively. If the lease is terminated early or if the loan is repaid prior to maturity, the remaining leasing costs or loan
costs are written off. Deferred leasing costs consist of internal and external commissions associated with leasing the Company’s shopping centers.
Net deferred leasing costs were $46.9 million and $46.8 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. Deferred loan costs consist of
initial direct and incremental costs associated with financing activities. Net deferred loan costs were $9.3 million and $10.7 million at June 30, 2009
and December 31, 2008, respectively.

 
 (g) Derivative Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133” (“Statement 161”),
amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“Statement
133”) with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced understanding of (a) how and why an entity uses derivative
instruments; (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement 133 and its related interpretations; and
(c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. Statement
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161 requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about the fair value of and gains
and losses on derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative instruments.

The Company accounts for all derivative financial instruments in accordance with Statement 133 as amended by SFAS No. 149 “Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“Statement 149”). Statement 133 requires that all derivative instruments, whether
designated in hedging relationships or not, be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair values. The accounting for changes in the fair value of
derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative, whether the Company has elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and
apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated
and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset, liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such
as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching
of the timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk in a fair value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge.
The Company may enter into derivative contracts that are intended to economically hedge certain of its risk, even though hedge accounting does not
apply or the Company elects not to apply hedge accounting under Statement 133.

The Company’s use of derivative financial instruments is intended to mitigate its interest rate risk on a related financial instrument or forecasted
transaction through the use of interest rate swaps (the “Swaps”) and the Company designates these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges. Statement
133 requires that the gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges be recognized in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) while the ineffective portion of the derivative’s change in fair value be recognized in the income statement as
interest expense. Upon the settlement of a hedge, gains and losses remaining in OCI are amortized over the underlying term of the hedge transaction.
The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategies for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company assesses, both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows and/or forecasted cash flows of the
hedged items.

In assessing the valuation of the hedges, the Company uses standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models, and termination costs at each balance sheet date. All methods of assessing fair value result in a general approximation of
value, and such value may never actually be realized. See Notes 9 and 10 for further discussion.

In accordance with SFAS No. 104 “Statement of Cash Flows - Net Reporting of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments and Classification of
Cash Flows from Hedging Transactions — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 95” (“Statement 104”), the Company
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has elected to classify swap termination cash flows as operating activities in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
 
 (h) Income Taxes

The Company believes it qualifies, and intends to continue to qualify, as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). As a REIT, the
Company will generally not be subject to federal income tax, provided that distributions to its stockholders are at least equal to REIT taxable income.
Regency Realty Group, Inc. (“RRG”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of RCLP, is a Taxable REIT Subsidiary (“TRS”) as defined in Section 856(l) of
the Code. RRG is subject to federal and state income taxes and files separate tax returns.

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which these temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of dividends to stockholders, differs from net income reported for financial reporting purposes
primarily because of differences in depreciable lives and cost bases of the shopping centers, as well as other timing differences. See Note 7 for
further discussion.

The Company accounts for uncertainties in income tax positions in accordance with FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). Under FIN 48, tax positions shall initially be recognized in the financial statements when it
is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions shall initially and subsequently be
measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority
assuming full knowledge of the position and relevant facts. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income tax positions taken
and to be taken on its tax returns and that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years (after 2007 for federal and state) based on
an assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax laws applied to the facts of each matter.

 
 (i) Earnings per Share and Treasury Stock

The Company calculates earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” (“Statement 128”). Basic earnings per share of
common stock is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share
reflects the conversion of obligations and the assumed exercises of securities including the effects of shares issuable under the Company’s share-
based payment arrangements, if dilutive. On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted FSP EITF 03-6-1 (“FSP EITF 03-6-1”), “Determining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities” (“FSP EITF 03-6-1”) and concluded that the dividends paid
on the Company’s share-based payment transactions are not participating securities as they are forfeitable. See Note 13 for the calculation of
earnings per share (“EPS”).
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Repurchases of the Company’s common stock are recorded at cost and are reflected as treasury stock in the accompanying Consolidated Statement
of Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Regency’s outstanding shares do not include treasury shares.

 
 (j) Stock-Based Compensation

Regency grants stock-based compensation to its employees and directors. When Regency issues common shares as compensation, it receives a like
number of common units from the Partnership. Regency is committed to contribute to the Partnership all proceeds from the exercise of stock options
or other share-based awards granted under Regency’s Long-Term Omnibus Plan (the “Plan”). Accordingly, Regency’s ownership in the Partnership
will increase based on the amount of proceeds contributed to the Partnership for the common units it receives. As a result of the issuance of common
units to Regency for stock-based compensation, the Partnership accounts for stock-based compensation in the same manner as Regency.

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R) “Share-Based Payment” (“Statement 123(R)”) which
requires companies to measure the cost of stock-based compensation based on the grant-date fair value of the award. The cost of the stock-based
compensation is expensed over the vesting period. See Note 12 for further discussion.

 
 (k) Segment Reporting

The Company’s business is investing in retail shopping centers through direct ownership or through joint ventures. The Company actively manages
its portfolio of retail shopping centers and may from time to time make decisions to sell lower performing properties or developments not meeting its
long-term investment objectives. The proceeds from sales are reinvested into higher quality retail shopping centers, through acquisitions or new
developments, which management believes will meet its expected rate of return. It is management’s intent that all retail shopping centers will be
owned or developed for investment purposes; however, the Company may decide to sell all or a portion of a development upon completion. The
Company’s revenue and net income are generated from the operation of its investment portfolio. The Company also earns fees from third parties for
services provided to manage and lease retail shopping centers owned through joint ventures.

The Company’s portfolio is located throughout the United States; however, management does not distinguish or group its operations on a
geographical basis for purposes of allocating resources or measuring performance. The Company reviews operating and financial data for each
property on an individual basis; therefore, the Company defines an operating segment as its individual properties. No individual property constitutes
more than 10% of the Company’s combined revenue, net income or assets, and thus the individual properties have been aggregated into one
reportable segment based upon their similarities with regard to both the nature and economics of the centers, tenants and operational processes, as
well as long-term average financial performance. In addition, no single tenant accounts for 6% or more of revenue and none of the shopping centers
are located outside the United States.
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 (l) Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity

The Company accounts for noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities in accordance with SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” (“Statement 150”) which requires companies having consolidated entities with
specified termination dates to treat owners’ noncontrolling interests in such entities in an amount based on the fair value. See Note 10 for further
discussion.

 
 (m) Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

The Company accounts for assets and liabilities measured at fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“Statement
157”) as amended by FSP “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157” (“FSP FAS 157-2”). Statement 157 emphasizes that fair value is a market-
based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements,
Statement 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s
own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The three levels of inputs
used to measure fair value are as follows:

 

 •  Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.
 

 •  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
 

 
•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based on the Company’s own assumptions, as there is little,

if any, related market activity.

In January 2009, the Company adopted FSP FAS 157-2 which requires entities to measure nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, initially
measured at fair value in a business combination or other new basis event, to be remeasured at fair value in subsequent periods.

In January 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 159 “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“Statement 159”).
This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required
to be measured at fair value. Although Statement 159 was adopted, the Company did not elect to measure any other financial statement items at fair
value. See Note 10 for all fair value measurements of assets and liabilities made on a recurring and nonrecurring basis.

 
 (n) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168 “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles - A Replacement of FASB Statement No. 162” (“Statement 168”). Statement 168 establishes
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the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“Codification”) as the single source of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“U.S. GAAP”) recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities. Statement 168 and the Codification are effective for financial
statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009 and the adoption of this statement will not have any effect on the
Company other than updated references within the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167 “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)” (“Statement 167”). Statement 167 changes how a
reporting entity determines when an entity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting (or similar rights) should be
consolidated. The determination of whether a reporting entity is required to consolidate another entity is based on, among other things, the other
entity’s purpose and design and the reporting entity’s ability to direct the activities of the other entity that most significantly impact the other entity’s
economic performance. Statement 167 will be effective January 1, 2010 and early application is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of adopting this statement.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165 “Subsequent Events” (“Statement 165”). This Statement establishes principles and requirements for
subsequent events. In particular, this Statement sets forth a) the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a reporting entity
shall evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, b) the circumstances under
which an entity shall recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements, and c) the disclosures that an
entity shall make about events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company adopted this Statement on June 30, 2009.

 
 (o) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2008 amounts to conform to classifications adopted in 2009.
 
2. Real Estate Investments

During 2009, the Company did not have any acquisition activity, other than through the distribution-in-kind of properties from its co-investment
partnerships as described in Note 4.

 
3. Discontinued Operations

The Company maintains a conservative capital structure to fund its growth program without compromising its investment-grade ratings. This approach is
founded on a self-funding business model which utilizes center “recycling” as a key component and requires ongoing monitoring of each center to ensure
that it meets Regency’s investment standards. This recycling strategy calls for the Company to sell non-strategic assets and re-deploy the proceeds into
new, high-quality developments and acquisitions that are expected to generate sustainable revenue growth and more attractive returns.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company sold 100% of its ownership interest in one property in development for proceeds of $4.9 million,
net of a note receivable taken by the Company of $8.9 million, which was subsequently repaid in full in May 2009. The combined operating income and
gain on the sale of this property and properties classified as held-for-sale were reclassified to discontinued operations. The revenues from properties
included in discontinued operations were $1.4 million and $3.3 million, for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The revenues
from properties included in discontinued operations were $2.5 million and $6.5 million, for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The
operating income and gains on sales of properties included in discontinued operations are reported net of income taxes, if the property is sold by the TRS.

 
4. Investments in Real Estate Partnerships

The Company’s investments in real estate partnerships were $338.1 million and $383.4 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. Net
income or loss from these partnerships, which includes all operating results (including impairments) and gains on sales of properties within the joint
ventures, is allocated to the Company in accordance with the respective partnership agreements. Such allocations of net income or loss are recorded in
equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. The net difference between
the carrying amount of these investments and the underlying equity in net assets was $42.9 million and $77.3 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008, respectively. For non-DIK-JV’s, the net difference is accreted to income over the expected useful lives of the properties and other intangible assets,
which range in lives from 10 to 40 years, whereas for DIK-JV’s, the net difference is recognized at liquidation.

Cash distributions of earnings from operations from investments in real estate partnerships are presented in cash flows provided by operating activities in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Cash distributions from the sale of a property or loan proceeds received from the placement of
debt on a property included in investments in real estate partnerships are presented in cash flows provided by investing activities in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Investments in real estate partnerships are primarily composed of co-investment partnerships where the Company invests with three co-investment partners
and an open-end real estate fund (“Regency Retail Partners” or the “Fund”), as further described below. In addition to earning its pro-rata share of net
income or loss in each of these partnerships, the Company receives market-based fees for asset management, disposition, property management, leasing,
investment, and financing services. During the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company received fees from these co-investment
partnerships of $6.5 million and $11.8 million, respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company received fees from these
co-investment partnerships of $13.7 million and $20.2 million, respectively.
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Investments in real estate partnerships as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 consist of the following (in thousands):
 

   Ownership  2009   2008
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency (MCWR I)   25.00%  $ 4,545  11,137
Macquarie CountryWide Direct (MCWR I)   25.00%   —    3,760
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency II (MCWR II)   24.95%   162,850  197,602
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency III (MCWR III)   24.95%   422  623
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency-DESCO (MCWR-DESCO)   16.35%   25,084  21,924
Columbia Regency Retail Partners (Columbia I)   20.00%   29,063  29,704
Columbia Regency Partners II (Columbia II)   20.00%   11,865  12,858
Cameron Village LLC (Cameron)   30.00%   18,851  19,479
RegCal, LLC (RegCal)   25.00%   13,419  13,766
Regency Retail Partners (the Fund)   20.00%   22,980  23,838
Other investments in real estate partnerships   50.00%   49,028  48,717

        

Total    $338,107  383,408
        

Investments in real estate partnerships are reported net of deferred gains of $56.2 million and $88.3 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively. Cumulative deferred gain amounts related to each investment partnership are described below.

The Company co-invests with the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (“OPERF”) in three co-investment partnerships, two of which the Company
has ownership interests of 20% (“Columbia I” and “Columbia II”) and one in which the Company has an ownership interest of 30% (“Cameron”). The
Company’s investment in the three co-investment partnerships with OPERF totals $59.8 million and represents 1.4% of the Company’s total assets at
June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2009, the OPERF co-investment partnerships had total assets of $750.9 million and net income of $3.1 million for the six
months ended and the Company’s share of its total assets and net income was $162.1 million and approximately $134,000, respectively.

As of June 30, 2009, Columbia I owned 14 shopping centers, had total assets of $321.3 million, and net income of $3.6 million for the six months ended.
The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, the Company has applied
the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of gain that the Company recognizes on property sales to Columbia I. During 2009, the Company did
not sell any properties to Columbia I. Since the inception of Columbia I in 2001, the Company has recognized gain of $2.0 million on partial sales to
Columbia I and deferred gain of $4.3 million. In December 2008, the Company earned and recognized a $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive Return fee from
OPERF based on Columbia I’s outperformance of the cumulative National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (“NCREIF”) index since the
inception of the partnership and a cumulative hurdle rate as outlined in the partnership agreement which was reflected in other receivables as of
December 31, 2008. The Company collected the receivable in full in April 2009.

As of June 30, 2009, Columbia II owned 16 shopping centers, had total assets of $319.0 million, and a net loss of approximately $10,000 for the six months
ended. The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, the Company has
applied the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of gain that the Company recognizes on property sales to Columbia II. During 2009, the
Company did not sell
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any properties to Columbia II. Since the inception of Columbia II in 2004, the Company has recognized gain of $9.1 million on partial sales to Columbia II
and deferred gain of $15.7 million.

As of June 30, 2009, Cameron owned one shopping center, had total assets of $110.6 million, and a net loss of approximately $484,000 for the six months
ended. The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require the Company to apply the Restricted Gain Method. Since the
inception of Cameron in 2004, the Company has not sold any properties to Cameron.

The Company co-invests with the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (“CalSTRS”) in a joint venture (“RegCal”) in which the Company has a
25% ownership interest. As of June 30, 2009, RegCal owned seven shopping centers, had total assets of $156.5 million, and net income of approximately
$602,000 for the six months ended and the Company’s share of its total assets and net income was $39.1 million and approximately $150,000, respectively.
The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, the Company has applied
the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of gain that the Company recognizes on property sales to RegCal. During 2009, the Company did not
sell any properties to RegCal. Since the inception of RegCal in 2004, the Company has recognized gain of $10.1 million on partial sales to RegCal and
deferred gain of $3.4 million.

The Company co-invests with Macquarie CountryWide Trust of Australia (“MCW”) in four co-investment partnerships, one in which the Company has an
ownership interest of 25% (“MCWR I”), two in which the Company has an ownership interest of 24.95% (“MCWR II” and “MCWR III”), and one in
which the Company has an ownership interest of 16.35% (“MCWR-DESCO”). The Company’s investment with MCW totals $192.9 million and represents
4.5% of the Company’s total assets at June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2009, the MCW co-investment partnerships had total assets of $2.8 billion and a net loss
of $102.9 million and the Company’s share of their total assets and net loss was $667.1 million and approximately $25.4 million respectively.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR I owned nine shopping centers, had total assets of $112.5 million, and net income of $3.8 million for the six months ended.
The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, the Company has applied
the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of gain the Company recognizes on property sales to MCWR I. During 2009, the Company did not
sell any properties to MCWR I. Since the inception of MCWR I in 2001, the Company has recognized gain of $27.5 million on partial sales to MCWR I
and deferred gain of $46.9 million. On January 14, 2009, under the terms of the MCWR I partnership agreement, MCW elected to dissolve the partnership.
The Company is in the process of liquidating the partnership through a DIK, which provides for distribution of the properties to each partner under an
alternating selection process, ultimately in proportion to the value of each partner’s respective ownership interest in the partnership as of the date of
liquidation. The total fair value of the properties was $467.3 million based on third party appraisals, net of debt. As of June 30, 2009, MCW had received
27 properties and the Company had received four properties through the DIK. The four properties the Company had received had a fair value of $102.6
million, net of debt, and consistent with the Restricted Gain Method, the properties were recorded at the net carrying value of the Company’s equity
investment of $21.1 million, net of deferred gain of $31.7 million. As a result, no gain or loss was recognized on the dissolution. The dissolution is
expected to be completed by the end of 2009 subject to required lender consents for ownership transfer. The Company expects to receive the final two
additional properties and MCW expects to receive the final seven additional
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properties by the end of 2009. During 2009, MCWR I sold one shopping center to a third party for $7.8 million and recognized a gain of $3.7 million.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR II owned 86 shopping centers, had total assets of $2.2 billion and a net loss of $104.1 million for the six months ended. The
net loss was primarily related to the provision for impairment recorded in June 2009 as a result of MCW’s decision to sell its interest in MCWR II. The
Company considered MCW’s sale a “triggering event” for an impairment analysis and reviewed the MCWR II portfolio identifying 13 properties targeted
for sale over the next three years. These properties were previously expected to be held and used long term and this change in the properties’ holding
periods resulted in a provision for impairment of $99.8 million. See Note 16 for further discussion related to the MCW sale of its partnership interest. In
January 2009, the partnership agreement was amended to include a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation
which will be effective January 1, 2010; therefore, the Company will apply the Restricted Gain Method if properties are sold to MCWR II. During 2009,
the Company did not sell any properties to MCWR II. Since the inception of MCWR II in 2005, the Company has recognized gain of $2.3 million on
partial sales to MCWR II and deferred gain of approximately $766,000.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR III owned four shopping centers, had total assets of $65.5 million, and a net loss of approximately $190,000 for the six
months ended. In January 2009, the partnership agreement was amended to include a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK
upon liquidation which will be effective January 1, 2010; therefore, the Company will apply the Restricted Gain Method if properties are sold to MCWR
III. During 2009, the Company did not sell any properties to MCWR III. Since the inception of MCWR III in 2005, the Company has recognized gain of
$14.1 million on partial sales to MCWR III and deferred gain of $4.7 million.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR-DESCO owned 32 shopping centers, had total assets of $386.4 million and recorded a net loss of $2.4 million for the six
months ended. The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require the Company to apply the Restricted Gain Method.
Since the inception of MCWR-DESCO in 2007, the Company has not sold any properties to MCWR-DESCO.

The Company co-invests with Regency Retail Partners (the “Fund”), an open-ended, infinite life investment fund in which the Company has an ownership
interest of 20%. As of June 30, 2009, the Fund owned nine shopping centers, had total assets of $373.5 million, and recorded a net loss of $1.6 million for
the six months ended and the Company’s share of its total assets and net loss was $74.6 million and approximately $216,000, respectively. The partnership
agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require the Company to apply the Restricted Gain Method. During 2009, the Company did not
sell any properties to the Fund. Since the inception of the Fund in 2006, the Company has recognized gain of $71.6 million on partial sales to the Fund and
deferred gain of $17.9 million.
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Summarized financial information for the investments in real estate partnerships on a combined basis, is as follows (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008
Investment in real estate, net   $3,918,628  4,518,783
Acquired lease intangible assets, net    146,664  186,141
Other assets    146,300  157,806

       

Total assets   $4,211,592  4,862,730
       

Notes payable   $2,470,830  2,792,450
Acquired lease intangible liabilities, net    88,039  97,146
Other liabilities    77,792  83,814
Members’ or Partners’ capital    1,574,931  1,889,320

       

Total liabilities and capital   $4,211,592  4,862,730
       

Investments in real estate partnerships had notes payable of $2.5 billion and $2.8 billion as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, and the
Company’s proportionate share of these loans was $586.3 million and $664.1 million, respectively. The Company does not guarantee these loans except for
two loans totaling $35.3 million related to its 50% investment interest in two single asset investments in real estate partnerships where the loan agreements
contain “several” guarantees from each partner.

As of June 30, 2009, scheduled principal repayments on notes payable of the investments in real estate partnerships were as follows (in thousands):
 

Scheduled Principal Payments by Year:   

Scheduled
Principal
Payments   

Mortgage Loan
Maturities   

Unsecured
Maturities  Total   

Regency’s
Pro-Rata

Share
2009   $ 1,845  36,578  12,348  50,771  10,776
2010    3,664  645,223  26,685  675,572  167,811
2011    3,320  462,916  —    466,236  115,320
2012    4,050  247,907  —    251,957  62,255
2013    3,809  32,447  —    36,256  8,900
Beyond 5 Years    30,503  953,562  —    984,065  220,102
Unamortized debt premiums, net    —    5,973  —    5,973  1,161

                

Total   $ 47,191  2,384,606  39,033  2,470,830  586,325
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The revenues and expenses for the investments in real estate partnerships on a combined basis are summarized as follows (in thousands):
 

   
For the three months

ended June 30,   
For the six months

ended June 30,  
   2009   2008   2009   2008  
Total revenues   $ 101,876   119,959   211,715   242,699  

    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Operating expenses:      
Depreciation and amortization    39,703   45,092   80,430   91,165  
Operating and maintenance    14,883   16,359   31,761   34,299  
General and administrative    3,054   2,988   4,668   5,176  
Real estate taxes    14,512   15,326   30,001   30,875  
Provision for impairment    99,789   —     99,789   —    

    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Total operating expenses    171,941   79,765   246,649   161,515  
    

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

Other expense (income):      
Interest expense, net    34,404   36,688   67,856   72,928  
(Gain) on sale of real estate    326   (9,113)  (6,106)  (13,502) 
Other income    35   35   70   70  

    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Total other expense (income)    34,765   27,610   61,820   59,496  
    

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

Net income (loss)   $(104,830)  12,584   (96,754)  21,688  
    

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 
5. Notes Receivable

The Company had notes receivable outstanding of $28.0 million and $31.4 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. The notes
receivable have fixed interest rates ranging from 6.0% to 10.0% with maturity dates through November 2014.

 
6. Acquired Lease Intangibles

The Company had acquired lease intangible assets, net of amortization, of $11.4 million and $12.9 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively, of which $11.0 million and $12.5 million, respectively relates to in-place leases. These in-place leases had a remaining weighted average
amortization period of 5.8 years and the aggregate amortization expense recorded for these in-place leases was approximately $672,000 and $1.2 million
for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and $1.4 million and $2.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The Company had above-market lease intangible assets, net of amortization, of approximately $391,000 and $442,000 at June 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, respectively. The remaining weighted average amortization period was 3.9 years and the aggregate amortization expense recorded as a
reduction to minimum rent for these above-market leases was approximately $26,000 and $30,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, and approximately $52,000 and $59,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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The Company had acquired lease intangible liabilities, net of accretion, of $6.9 million and $7.9 million as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively. The remaining weighted average accretion period is 4.4 years and the aggregate amount accreted as an increase to minimum rent for these
below-market rents was approximately $484,000 and $811,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and approximately
$991,000 and $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

 
7. Income Taxes

Income tax (benefit) expense is included in other expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and during the six months ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of approximately $190,000 and approximately $356,000, respectively.

During 2008, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) commenced an examination of the Company’s U.S. income tax returns for 2006 and 2007 which was
completed in June 2009. The IRS did not propose any adjustments to the open tax years under audit.

 
8. Notes Payable and Unsecured Credit Facilities

In conjunction with properties distributed to us as part of the in-process liquidation of MCWR I, which began on January 14, 2009, the Company assumed
mortgage loans with carrying values of $17.0 million and $42.1 million with ten-year terms and interest rates of 6.13% and 6.38%, respectively.

On March 5, 2008, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and a group of other banks to provide the Company with a $341.5
million, three-year term loan facility (the “Term Facility”) maturing in February 2011. The Term Facility includes a term loan amount of $227.7 million
plus a $113.8 million revolving credit facility that is accessible at the Company’s discretion. The term loan has a variable interest rate equal to LIBOR plus
105 basis points which was 1.43% and 3.30% at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, and the revolving portion has a variable interest rate
equal to LIBOR plus 90 basis points. The balance on the Term Facility was $227.7 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008. There was no balance
on the revolving credit facility at June 30, 2009 or December 31, 2008.

The Company has a Line commitment (“the Line”) of $600.0 million and the right to expand the Line by an additional $150.0 million subject to additional
lender syndication. The Line has a four-year term maturing in February 2011 with a one-year extension at the Company’s option and a current interest rate
of LIBOR plus 40 basis points subject to maintaining corporate credit and senior unsecured ratings at BBB+. The Company paid the $180.0 million
balance on the Line in full in April 2009 and there was no balance at June 30, 2009. The balance on the Line was $70.0 million at December 31, 2008 with
a contractual interest rate of 1.34% based on LIBOR plus 40 basis points.

Including both the Line commitment and the Term Facility (collectively, “Unsecured credit facilities”), the Company has $941.5 million of total capacity
and the spread paid is dependent upon the Company maintaining specific investment-grade ratings. The Company is also required to comply with certain
financial covenants as defined in the Credit Agreement such as Minimum Net Worth, Ratio of Total Liabilities to Gross Asset Value (“GAV”) and Ratio of
Recourse Secured Indebtedness to GAV, Ratio of Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization
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(“EBITDA”) to Fixed Charges, and other covenants customary with this type of unsecured financing. As of June 30, 2009, management of the Company
believes it is in compliance with all financial covenants for the Unsecured credit facilities. The Unsecured credit facilities are used primarily to finance the
acquisition and development of real estate, but are also available for general working-capital purposes.

Notes payable consist of secured mortgage loans and unsecured public debt. Mortgage loans may be prepaid, but could be subject to yield maintenance
premiums. Mortgage loans are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest or interest only, and mature over various terms through 2018,
whereas, interest on unsecured public debt is payable semi-annually and the debt matures over various terms through 2017. Fixed interest rates on
mortgage loans range from 5.22% to 8.40% and average 6.32%. As of June 30, 2009, the Company had one variable rate mortgage loan in the amount of
$5.0 million with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 350 basis points maturing on August 1, 2009. The Company has a commitment for a three-year
extension and is currently negotiating new loan terms with the existing lender.

The Company’s outstanding debt at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 consists of the following (in thousands):
 

   2009   2008
Notes payable:     

Fixed rate mortgage loans   $ 288,589  235,150
Variable rate mortgage loans    5,049  5,130
Fixed rate unsecured loans    1,547,816  1,597,624

       

Total notes payable    1,841,454  1,837,904
Unsecured credit facilities    227,667  297,667

       

Total   $ 2,069,121  2,135,571
       

As of June 30, 2009, scheduled principal repayments on notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities were as follows (in thousands):
 

Scheduled Principal Payments by Year:   

Scheduled
Principal
Payments   

Mortgage Loan
Maturities   

Unsecured
Maturities   Total  

2009    2,660  5,049   —     7,709  
2010    5,393  17,043   160,000   182,436  
2011    5,291  11,276   467,667   484,234  
2012    5,609  —     250,000   255,609  
2013    5,536  16,356   —     21,892  
Beyond 5 Years    13,080  207,128   900,000   1,120,208  
Unamortized debt discounts, net    —    (783)  (2,184)  (2,967) 

       
 

  
 

  
 

Total   $ 37,569  256,069   1,775,483   2,069,121  
       

 

  

 

  

 

 

Includes unsecured public debt and Unsecured credit facilities
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9. Derivative Financial Instruments

Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Company principally manages its
exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The Company manages economic risks,
including interest rate, liquidity, and credit risk primarily by managing the amount, sources, and duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative
financial instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that
result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which are determined by interest rates. The Company’s derivative
financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount, timing, and duration of the Company’s known or expected cash payments principally
related to the Company’s borrowings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements.
To accomplish this objective, the Company primarily uses interest rate swaps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments
over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated that qualify as cash flow hedges is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss and subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. During 2009, such
derivatives were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated with forecasted issuances of debt (see “Objectives and Strategies” below for further
discussion). The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives will be amortized over the original terms of the hedged loans and
recognized directly in earnings as interest expense. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Company had no hedge ineffectiveness that
was recognized in earnings.

On April 16, 2009, the Company paid $20.0 million to settle and partially settle $106.0 million of its $396.7 million of interest rate swaps in place to hedge
forecasted debt. On July 1, 2009, the Company closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of 7.75% and a
ten-year term.

Realized losses associated with the interest rate swaps settled in 2004, 2005 and April 2009 and unrealized gains or losses associated with the swaps
entered into in 2006 have been included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Equity and
Comprehensive Income (Loss). The $20.0 million loss from the settlement and partial settlement of interest rate swaps will be amortized beginning in July
2009 when the Company closed on the forecasted debt. Unrealized gains or losses will not be amortized until such time that the probable debt issuances are
completed as long as the interest rate swaps continue to qualify for hedge accounting.
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The tables below represent the effect of the derivative financial instruments on the accompanying consolidated financial statements (in thousands):
 

   

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in OCI on
Derivative (Effective

Portion)   

Location of Gain
(Loss) Reclassified
from Accumulated
OCI into Income

(Effective Portion)   

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified from

Accumulated OCI into
Income (Effective

Portion)
   June 30,      June 30,
Derivatives in Statement 133 Cash Flow Hedging Relationships:   2009   2008      2009   2008
Interest rate products   $ (19,324)  653  Interest expense  $ 653  653

The unamortized balance of the settled interest rate swaps at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was $27.1 million and $7.8 million, respectively.

As of June 30, 2009, the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk
(dollars in thousands):

 
Notional Value   Interest Rate  Maturity   Fair Value

$100,000   5.415%  09/15/20       (8,708)
    90,700   5.399%  01/15/20     (10,208)
  100,000   5.415%  09/15/20       (8,662)

       

$290,700      $(27,578)
       

The table below presents the fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

 
Liability Derivatives  

As of June 30, 2009   As of December 31, 2008  
Balance Sheet Location   Fair Value  Balance Sheet Location   Fair Value 

Derivative instruments   (27,578)  Derivative instruments   (83,691) 

Non-designated Hedges

The Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes and currently does not have any derivatives that are not designated as hedges.

Objectives and Strategies

For $90.7 million of the remaining Swaps, the Company continues to expect to issue new secured or unsecured debt for a term of 7 to 12 years during the
period between June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2010. For $200.0 million of the remaining Swaps, the Company continues to expect to issue new debt for a
term of seven to 12 years during the period between March 30, 2010 and March 30, 2011. The Company continuously monitors the capital markets and
evaluates its ability to issue new debt to repay maturing debt or fund its commitments. Based upon the current capital markets, the Company’s current
credit ratings, and the number of high quality, unencumbered
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properties that it owns which could collateralize borrowings, the Company expects that it will successfully issue new secured or unsecured debt to fund its
obligations. However, in the current environment, interest rates on new issuances are expected to be significantly higher than on historical issuances. An
increase of 1.0% in the interest rate of new debt issues above that of maturing debt would result in additional annual interest expense of $4.0 million in
addition to the impact of the annual amortization that would be incurred as a result of settling the respective interest rate swaps.

 
10. Fair Value Measurements

Derivative Financial Instruments

The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash
flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based
inputs, including interest rate curves, and implied volatilities. To comply with the provisions of Statement 157, the Company incorporates credit valuation
adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair value
measurements.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit
valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default
by itself and its counterparties.

As of June 30, 2009 the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
those measurements fall were as follows (in thousands):

 
      Fair Value Measurements Using:

Liabilities   Balance   

Quoted
Prices in
Active

Markets for
Identical
Liabilties
(Level 1)   

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs (Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs (Level 3)
Derivative instruments   $(27,578)  —    (30,048)  2,470

Changes in Level 3 inputs are not sufficiently significant to warrant reconciliation for the six months ended June 30, 2009.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

See Note 1(c) for a discussion on the inputs used in determining the fair value of long-lived assets. The Company has determined that the majority of the
inputs used to value its long-lived assets fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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The Company’s assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are those long-lived assets for which the Company has recorded a provision for
impairment during the current period. The assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are as follows:

 
   Fair Value Measurements Using:  

Assets   Balance   

Quoted
Prices in
Active

Markets
for

Identical
Assets

(Level 1)  

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)   

Total
(Losses) 

Long-lived assets held and used   $17,714  —    17,714  —    (2,369) 

The following disclosures represent additional fair value measurements of assets and liabilities that are not recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Notes Payable

The carrying value of the Company’s variable rate notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities are based upon a spread above LIBOR which is lower
than the spreads available in the current credit markets, causing the fair value of such variable rate debt to be below its carrying value. The fair value of
fixed rate loans are estimated using cash flows discounted at current market rates available to the Company for debt with similar terms and maturities.
Fixed rate loans assumed in connection with real estate acquisitions are recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements at fair value at the
time of acquisition excluding those loans assumed in DIK liquidations. Based on the estimates used by the Company, the fair value of notes payable and the
Unsecured credit facilities was approximately $1.5 billion and $1.3 billion at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Noncontrolling Interests

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had 468,211 exchangeable operating partnerships (“OP”) Units outstanding. The redemption
value of the exchangeable OP Units is based on the closing market price of Regency’s common stock, which was $34.91 and $46.70 per share as of
June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, and the aggregate redemption value was $16.3 million and $21.9 million, respectively.

At June 30, 2009, the Company held a majority interest in four consolidated entities with specified termination dates through 2049. The noncontolling
interests in these entities will be settled upon termination by distribution or transfer of either cash or specific assets of the underlying entities. The estimated
fair value of the noncontrolling interests in entities with specified termination dates was approximately $9.0 million and $9.5 million at June 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, respectively. Their related carrying value was $6.5 million and $6.3 million as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively,
which is included within noncontrolling interests of limited partners’ interest in consolidated partnerships in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets.
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11. Equity

Preferred Stock

The Series 3, 4, and 5 preferred shares are perpetual, are not convertible into common stock of the Company, and are redeemable at par upon Regency’s
election beginning five years after the issuance date. None of the terms of the Preferred Stock contain any unconditional obligations that would require the
Company to redeem the securities at any time or for any purpose and the Company does not currently anticipate redeeming any preferred stock. Terms and
conditions of the three series of Preferred stock outstanding as of June 30, 2009 are summarized as follows:

 

Series   
Shares

Outstanding   
Liquidation
Preference   

Distribution
Rate   

Callable
By Company

Series 3   3,000,000  $ 75,000,000  7.45%  04/03/08
Series 4   5,000,000   125,000,000  7.25%  08/31/09
Series 5   3,000,000   75,000,000  6.70%  08/02/10

          

  11,000,000  $275,000,000   
          

Common Stock

On April 24, 2009, the Company completed a public offering of 10.0 million common shares at $32.50 per share resulting in proceeds of $310.9 million,
net of issuance costs. The funds were used to pay-off the balance of the Line, which had a balance of $180.0 million, and the remaining amount of
approximately $130.0 million was deposited in the Company’s cash accounts to be used for future general working capital needs including repayment of
maturing debt, investments in real estate partnership capital calls to the extent required based on the Company’s respective ownership interest in such
partnership, and costs to complete in-process development projects.

Noncontrolling Interest of Preferred Units

At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the face value of the Series D Preferred Units was $50.0 million with a fixed distribution rate of 7.45% and
recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets net of original issuance costs.

Terms and conditions for the Series D Preferred Units outstanding as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 are summarized as follows:
 

Units Outstanding   
Amount

Outstanding   
Distribution

Rate   
Callable by
Company   

Exchangeable
by Unit holder

500,000   $50,000,000  7.45%  09/29/09  01/01/16

The Preferred Units, which may be called by Regency (through RCLP) at par beginning September 29, 2009, have no stated maturity or mandatory
redemption and pay a cumulative, quarterly dividend at a fixed rate. The Preferred Units may be exchanged by the holder for Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock”) at an exchange rate of one unit for one share. The Preferred Units and the related Preferred Stock are not convertible
into common stock of the Company.
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Noncontrolling Interest of Exchangeable Operating Partnerships Units

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had 468,211 redeemable OP Units outstanding. See Note 10 for further discussion.

Noncontrolling Interests of Limited Partners’ Interest in Consolidated Partnerships

Limited partners’ interests in consolidated partnerships not owned by the Company are classified as noncontrolling interests on the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Subject to certain conditions and pursuant to the conditions of the agreement, the Company has the right, but not the
obligation, to purchase the other member’s interest or sell its own interest in these consolidated partnerships. At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the
Company’s noncontrolling interest in these consolidated partnerships was $9.1 million and $8.0 million, respectively.

 
12. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recorded stock-based compensation in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations as
follows, the components of which are further described below (in thousands):

 

   

For the three
months ended

June 30,   

For the six
months ended

June 30,
   2009   2008   2009   2008
Restricted stock   $1,790  5,218  3,235  10,436
Stock options    —    247  —    494
Directors’ fees paid in common stock    70  107  157  212

             

Total   $1,860  5,572  3,392  11,142
             

The recorded amounts of stock-based compensation expense represent amortization of deferred compensation related to share-based payments in
accordance with Statement 123(R). During 2009, compensation expense declined as a result of the Company reducing estimated payout amounts related to
incentive compensation tied directly to Company performance. Compensation expense specifically identifiable to development and leasing activities is
capitalized and included above. During the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, compensation expense of approximately $897,000 and $2.0
million, respectively, was capitalized. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, compensation expense of approximately $1.4 million and $4.0
million, respectively, was capitalized.

The Company established the Plan under which the Board of Directors may grant stock options and other stock-based awards to officers, directors, and
other key employees. The Plan allows the Company to issue up to 5.0 million shares in the form of common stock or stock options, but limits the issuance
of common stock excluding stock options to no more than 2.75 million shares. At June 30, 2009, there were approximately 1.9 million shares available for
grant under the Plan either through options or restricted stock. The Plan also limits outstanding awards to no more than 12% of outstanding common stock.
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Stock options are granted under the Plan with an exercise price equal to the stock’s price at the date of grant. All stock options granted have ten-year lives,
contain vesting terms of one to five years from the date of grant and some have dividend equivalent rights. Stock options granted prior to 2005 also
contained “reload” rights, which allowed an option holder the right to receive new options each time existing options were exercised, if the existing options
were exercised under specific criteria provided for in the Plan. In 2005 and 2007, the Company acquired the “reload” rights of existing employees’ and
directors’ stock options from the option holders, substantially canceling all of the “reload” rights on existing stock options in exchange for new options.
These new stock options vest 25% per year and are expensed ratably over a four-year period beginning in year of grant in accordance with Statement
123(R). Options granted under the reload buy-out plan do not earn dividend equivalents.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton closed-form (“Black-Scholes”) option valuation
model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock and other factors. The Company uses historical data and other factors
to estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted is derived from the output of the
option valuation model and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the
contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The Company believes that the use of the Black-
Scholes model meets the fair value measurement objectives of Statement 123(R) and reflects all substantive characteristics of the instruments being valued.
No stock options were granted during 2009.

The following table reports stock option activity during the six months ended June 30, 2009:
 

   
Number of

Options   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term
(in years)   

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands) 

Outstanding - December 31, 2008   574,027  $ 51.24    
Less: Forfeited   7,282   64.49    
Less: Expired   8,108   53.95    

           

Outstanding – June 30, 2009   558,637  $ 51.02  4.4  (9,002) 
           

Vested and expected to vest – June 30, 2009   558,637  $ 51.02  4.4  (9,002) 
             

 

Exercisable - June 30, 2009   554,268  $ 50.73  4.4  (8,768) 
             

 

There were no stock options exercised in the six months ended June 30, 2009. As of June 30, 2009, there was approximately $88,000 of unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested stock options granted under the Plan all of which is expected to be recognized in 2009. The Company issues new
shares to fulfill option exercises from its authorized shares available.
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The following table presents information regarding non-vested option activity during the six months ended June 30, 2009:
 

   

Non-vested
Number of

Options   

Weighted
Average

Grant-Date
Fair Value

Non-vested at December 31, 2008   180,020  $ 6.04
Less: Forfeited   2,307   8.78
Less: 2009 Vesting   173,344   5.96

       

Non-vested at June 30, 2009   4,369  $ 8.78
       

The Company grants restricted stock under the Plan to its employees as a form of long-term compensation and retention. The terms of each grant vary
depending upon the participant’s responsibilities and position within the Company. The Company’s stock grants can be categorized into three types: (a) 4-
year vesting, (b) performance-based vesting, and (c) 8-year cliff vesting.

 

 
•  The 4-year vesting grants vest 25% per year beginning on the date of grant. These grants are not subject to future performance measures, and if such

vesting criteria are not met, the compensation cost previously recognized would be reversed.
 

 

•  Performance-based vesting grants are earned subject to future performance measurements, which include individual goals, annual growth in earnings,
compounded three-year growth in earnings, and a three-year total shareholder return peer comparison (“TSR Grant”). Once the performance criteria
are met and the actual number of shares earned is determined, certain shares will vest immediately while others will vest over an additional service
period.

 

 
•  The 8-year cliff vesting grants fully vest at the end of the eighth year from the date of grant; however, as a result of the achievement of future

performance, primarily growth in earnings, the vesting of these grants may be accelerated over a shorter term.

Performance-based vesting grants and 8-year cliff vesting grants are currently only granted to the Company’s senior management. The Company considers
the likelihood of meeting the performance criteria based upon managements’ estimates and analysis of future earnings growth from which it determines the
amounts recognized as expense on a periodic basis. The Company determines the grant date fair value of TSR Grants based upon a Monte Carlo Simulation
model. Compensation expense is measured at the grant date and recognized over the vesting period.
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The following table reports non-vested restricted stock activity during the six months ended June 30, 2009:
 

   
Number of

Shares   

Intrinsic
Value

(in thousands)  

Weighted
Average
Grant
Price

Non-vested at December 31, 2008   508,773    
Add: Granted   278,117    $ 39.09
Less: Vested and Distributed   256,000    $ 38.10
Less: Forfeited   29,331    $ 67.21

       

Non-vested at June 30, 2009   501,559  $ 17,509  
       

As of June 30, 2009, there was $22.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock granted under the Plan, when
recognized is recorded in additional paid in capital of the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss). This
unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over the next four years, through 2013. The Company issues new restricted stock from its
authorized shares available at the date of grant.
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13. Earnings per Share

The following summarizes the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively (in
thousands except per share data):

 
   2009   2008
Numerator:    
Income (loss) from continuing operations   $(12,299)  31,821
Discontinued operations    1,014   6,365

    
 

  

Net income (loss)    (11,285)  38,186
Less: Preferred stock dividends    4,919   4,919
Less: Noncontrolling interests    976   1,401

    
 

  

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders    (17,180)  31,866
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock    232   360

    
 

  

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders - basic and diluted   $(17,412)  31,506
    

 

  

Denominator:    
Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic EPS    77,109   69,397
Incremental shares to be issued under common stock options    —     155

    
 

  

Weighted average common shares outstanding for diluted EPS    77,109   69,552
    

 

  

Income (loss) per common share – basic    
Income (loss) from continuing operations   $ (0.24)  0.36
Discontinued operations    0.01   0.09

    
 

  

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders per share   $ (0.23)  0.45
    

 

  

Income (loss) per common share – diluted    
Income (loss) from continuing operations   $ (0.24)  0.36
Discontinued operations    0.01   0.09

    
 

  

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders per share   $ (0.23)  0.45
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The following summarizes the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively (in
thousands except per share data):

 
   2009   2008
Numerator:    
Income from continuing operations   $ 8,907   63,664
Discontinued operations    5,520   7,561

    
 

  

Net income    14,427   71,225
Less: Preferred stock dividends    9,838   9,838
Less: Noncontrolling interests    2,206   2,802

    
 

  

Net income attributable to common stockholders    2,383   58,585
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock    465   721

    
 

  

Net income attributable to common stockholders - basic and diluted   $ 1,918   57,864
    

 

  

Denominator:    
Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic EPS    73,349   69,359
Incremental shares to be issued under common stock options and unvested restricted stock    —     124

    
 

  

Weighted average common shares outstanding for diluted EPS    73,349   69,483
    

 

  

Income per common share – basic    
Income (loss) from continuing operations   $ (0.05)  0.73
Discontinued operations    0.08   0.10

    
 

  

Net income attributable to common stockholders per share   $ 0.03   0.83
    

 

  

Income per common share – diluted    
Income (loss) from continuing operations   $ (0.05)  0.72
Discontinued operations    0.08   0.11

    
 

  

Net income attributable to common stockholders per share   $ 0.03   0.83
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14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in litigation on a number of matters and is subject to certain claims which arise in the normal course of business, none of which,
in the opinion of management, is expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, or
liquidity. The Company is also subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations as they apply to real estate pertaining to chemicals used by the dry
cleaning industry, the existence of asbestos in older shopping centers, and underground petroleum storage tanks. The Company believes that the tenants
who currently operate dry cleaning plants or gas stations do so in accordance with current laws and regulations. The Company has placed environmental
insurance, when possible, on specific properties with known contamination, in order to mitigate its environmental risk. The Company monitors the
shopping centers containing environmental issues and in certain cases voluntarily remediates the sites. The Company also has legal obligations to remediate
certain sites and is in the process of doing so. The Company estimates the cost associated with these legal obligations to be approximately $2.6 million, all
of which has been reserved in accounts payable and other liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company believes that the
ultimate disposition of currently known environmental matters will not have a material effect on its financial position, liquidity, or operations; however, it
can give no assurance that existing environmental studies with respect to the shopping centers have revealed all potential environmental liabilities; that any
previous owner, occupant or tenant did not create any material environmental condition not known to it; that the current environmental condition of the
shopping centers will not be affected by tenants and occupants, by the condition of nearby properties, or by unrelated third parties; or that changes in
applicable environmental laws and regulations or their interpretation will not result in additional environmental liability to the Company.

 
15. Restructuring Charges

In March 2009, the Company announced an additional restructuring plan designed to align employee headcount with the Company’s projected workload.
As a result, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $2.2 million for employee severance and benefits related to the second employee reduction in
force phase which is included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended
June 30, 2009. The restructuring charges included severance benefits for 44 employees with no future service requirement and will be funded by September
2009 using cash from operations. The charges for the six months ended June 30, 2009 associated with the restructuring program are as follows (in
thousands):

 

   

Total
Restructuring

Charge   

Payments
through June 30,

2009   

Accrual at
June 30,

2009   
Due within 12

months
Severance   $ 1,913  1,840  73  73
Health insurance    148  148  —    —  
Placement services    178  160  18  18

             

Total   $ 2,239  2,148  91  91
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16. Subsequent Events

As previously discussed, Statement 165 requires that public entities evaluate subsequent events through the date that the financial statements are issued.
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of filing these financial statements with the SEC on August 7, 2009. See below for related
subsequent event disclosures:

As discussed in Note 9, on July 1, 2009, the Company closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of
7.75% and a ten-year term.

On July 17, 2009, the Company announced that its co-investment partner, MCW, has agreed to sell its interest in MCWR II, an existing co-investment
partnership between MCW and Regency, to Global Retail Investors LLC (“GRI”), a joint venture between the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (“CalPERS”) and an affiliate of First Washington Realty, Inc. In conjunction with the sale, the Company has options to increase its ownership in
MCWR II to 40%.

Contracts have been signed for a phased sale process that will result in multiple closings over the next 24 months. The first phase involved the sale of 45%
of the partnership to GRI which closed on July 31, 2009 and Regency received a disposition fee of $7.8 million at closing. The second phase involves the
sale of an additional 15% of the partnership to GRI and is scheduled to close upon receipt of lender consents for the balance of the property-level loans.

The Company has two options to increase its ownership in the partnership by up to 15% in total. One option allows the Company to purchase up to an
additional 10% interest in the portfolio from MCW which must be exercised within 21 months of the initial closing. If the Company chooses not to exercise
the additional 10% option, the option would be available to GRI. If GRI does not purchase the remaining 10%, MCW can initiate a DIK to recover its
remaining 10% interest. The other option allows the Company to purchase up to an additional 5% interest in the partnership from MCW which must be
exercised by the later of March 31, 2010, or GRI’s second phase closing. In the event that the Company does not exercise the 5% option, GRI must acquire
the additional 5% interest.

Assuming the Company exercises all of its options, the Company’s ownership in MCW II will increase to 40% and GRI would own 60% of the
partnership. The Company will remain the managing member of the partnership and retain property management and leasing responsibilities. For its
services and efforts, the Company will receive a disposition fee from MCW equal to 1% of the gross sales price paid by GRI for MCW’s partnership
interest and a 7.7% discount on its purchase options. If the discounted purchase options are not exercised by the Company, the Company will receive cash
payments of up to $17.0 million.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, the following information contains forward-looking statements as defined under federal securities laws. These
forward-looking statements include statements about anticipated changes in our revenues, the size of our development program, earnings per share, returns and
portfolio value, and expectations about our liquidity. These statements are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about the industry and markets
in which Regency Centers Corporation (“Regency” or “Company”) operates, and management’s beliefs and assumptions. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve certain known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by such statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, changes in national and local economic conditions including
the impact of a slowing economy; financial difficulties of tenants; competitive market conditions, including timing and pricing of acquisitions and sales of
properties and out-parcels; changes in expected leasing activity and market rents; timing of development starts and sales of properties and out-parcels; meeting
development schedules; our inability to exercise voting control over the co-investment partnerships through which we own or develop many of our properties;
weather; consequences of any armed conflict or terrorist attack against the United States; and the ability to obtain governmental approvals. For additional
information, see “Risk Factors” in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. The following discussion should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto of Regency Centers Corporation appearing elsewhere within.

Overview of Our Operating Strategy

Regency is a qualified real estate investment trust (“REIT”), which began operations in 1993. Our primary operating and investment goal is long-term
growth in earnings and total shareholder return, which we work to achieve by focusing on a strategy of owning, operating and developing high-quality
community and neighborhood shopping centers that are tenanted by market-dominant grocers, category-leading anchors, specialty retailers and restaurants
located in areas with above average household incomes and population densities. All of our operating, investing and financing activities are performed through
our operating partnership, Regency Centers, L.P. (“RCLP” or “Partnership”), RCLP’s wholly owned subsidiaries, and through its investments in real estate
partnerships with third parties (also referred to as co-investment partnerships or joint ventures). Regency currently owns 99% of the outstanding operating
partnership units of RCLP.

At June 30, 2009, we directly owned 226 shopping centers (the “Consolidated Properties”) located in 24 states representing 24.3 million square feet of
gross leasable area (“GLA”). Our cost of these shopping centers and those under development is $4.2 billion before depreciation. Through co-investment
partnerships, we own partial ownership interests in 183 shopping centers (the “Unconsolidated Properties”) located in 26 states and the District of Columbia
representing 22.0 million square feet of GLA. Our investment in the partnerships that own the Unconsolidated Properties is $338.1 million. Certain portfolio
information described below is presented (a) on a Combined Basis, which is a total of the Consolidated Properties and the Unconsolidated Properties, (b) for our
Consolidated Properties only and (c) for the Unconsolidated Properties that we own through co-investment partnerships. We believe that presenting the
information under these methods provides a more complete understanding of the properties that we wholly-own versus those that we indirectly own through
entities we do not control, but for which we provide asset management, disposition, property management, leasing, investing and financing services. The
shopping center portfolio that we manage, on a Combined Basis, represents 409 shopping centers located in 29 states and the District of Columbia and contains
46.3 million square feet of GLA.

We earn revenues and generate cash flow by leasing space in our shopping centers to market-leading grocers, major retail anchors, specialty side-shop
retailers, and restaurants, including ground
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leasing or selling building pads (out-parcels) to these potential tenants. Historically, we have experienced growth in revenues by increasing occupancy and rental
rates at currently owned shopping centers, and by acquiring and developing new shopping centers. Community and neighborhood shopping centers generate
substantial daily traffic by conveniently offering necessities and services. This high traffic generates increased sales, thereby driving higher occupancy and rental-
rate growth, which we expect will sustain our growth in earnings per share and increase the value of our portfolio over the long term.

We seek a range of strong national, regional and local specialty retailers, for the same reason that we choose to anchor our centers with leading grocers and
major retailers who provide a mix of goods and services that meet consumer needs. We have created a formal partnering process, the Premier Customer Initiative
(“PCI”), to promote mutually beneficial relationships with our specialty retailers. The objective of PCI is for us to build a base of specialty tenants who represent
the “best-in-class” operators in their respective merchandising categories. Such retailers reinforce the consumer appeal and other strengths of a center’s anchor,
help stabilize a center’s occupancy, reduce re-leasing downtime, reduce tenant turnover and yield higher sustainable rents.

The current economic recession has negatively impacted our results. Regency is experiencing slower lease up and less tenant demand for vacant space as
well as a higher level of retail store closings and collection losses in our shopping centers. These factors have contributed to a decline in our occupancy
percentages and rental revenues.

We are closely monitoring certain national tenants who have negotiated co-tenancy clauses in their lease agreements. Co-tenancy clauses have several
variants: they may allow a tenant to postpone a store opening if certain other tenants fail to open their store; they may allow a tenant the opportunity to close their
store prior to lease expiration if another tenant closes their store prior to lease expiration; or more commonly, they may allow a tenant to pay reduced levels of
rent until a certain number of tenants open their stores within the same shopping center. As the current recession continues to depress retail sales, we could
experience reductions in rent and occupancy related to tenants exercising their co-tenancy clauses. We believe that our investment focus on neighborhood and
community shopping centers that conveniently provide daily necessities will help to mitigate the current economy’s negative impact on our shopping centers.
However, the negative impact could still be significant, especially in our larger format community shopping centers that contain a substantial number of tenant
leases with co-tenancy clauses.

We are closely monitoring the operating performance, collections, and tenants’ sales in our shopping centers including those tenants operating retail
formats that are experiencing significant changes in competition, business practice, reductions in sales and store closings in other locations. We expect as the
current economic downturn continues, additional retailers will announce store closings and/or bankruptcies that could affect our shopping centers. During the
three months ended June 30, 2009, we experienced a higher tenant default rate as compared to previous quarters primarily related to our local tenants, which are
generally defined as tenants operating five or fewer stores, primarily restaurants, fitness, dry cleaners and tanning salons, to name a few. In addition, we noted
significant deterioration in our overall accounts receivable collection rate.

We grow our shopping center portfolio through acquisitions of operating centers and new shopping center development, where we acquire the land and
construct the building. Development is customer driven, meaning we generally have an executed lease from the anchor before we start construction.
Developments serve the growth needs of our anchors and specialty retailers, resulting in modern shopping centers with long-term anchor leases that produce
attractive returns on our invested capital. This development process can require three to five years from initial land or redevelopment acquisition through
construction, lease-up and stabilization of rental income, but can take longer depending upon the size of the project. Generally, anchor tenants begin operating
their stores prior to the completion of construction of the entire center, resulting in rental income during the development phase.

In the near term, fewer new store openings amongst retailers is resulting in reduced demand for new retail space and is causing corresponding reductions in
new leasing rental rates and development
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pre-leasing. As a result, we have been and are significantly reducing our development program by decreasing the number of new projects started, phasing existing
developments that lack retail demand, and decreasing related general and administrative expense. Although our development program will continue to be a
significant part of our long term business strategy, new development projects will always be rigorously evaluated in regard to availability of capital, visibility of
tenant demand to achieve a stabilized occupancy, and sufficient investment returns.

We strive to maintain a conservative capital structure, with the objective of maintaining our investment-grade ratings. Our approach is founded on a
combination of maintaining a strong balance sheet and capital recycling to fund our future capital commitments and growth. The strength of our balance sheet is
directly related to maintaining conservative debt to asset, debt to Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”), and fixed
charge coverage ratios. Further, we endeavor to maintain a high percentage of unencumbered assets, currently 86.5% of total real estate assets, which increases
access to the mortgage markets as evidenced by the Allianz mortgage loan discussed below under “Liquidity and Capital Resources”; maintain significant cash
balances, currently $126.8 million as of June 30, 2009; and maintain a significant unused portion of our line of credit commitment, which currently has no
outstanding balance.

Capital recycling involves contributing shopping centers to co-investment partnerships and culling non-strategic assets from our real estate portfolio and
selling those on the open market. These sales proceeds are either reserved for future capital commitments related to in process development or debt maturities, or
re-deployed into new, high-quality developments and acquisitions that will generate sustainable revenue growth and attractive returns. To the extent that we are
unable to execute our capital recycling program or generate adequate sources of capital, we will significantly reduce and even stop new investment activity.

Co-investment partnerships provide us with a reliable capital source for new developments and acquisitions, as well as the opportunity to earn fees for asset
management, property management, and disposition services. As asset manager, we are engaged by our partners to apply similar operating, investment and capital
strategies to the portfolios owned by the co-investment partnerships as those applied to the portfolio that we wholly-own. Co-investment partnerships grow their
shopping center investments through acquisitions from third parties or direct purchases from us. Although selling properties to co-investment partnerships reduces
our direct ownership interest, it provides a source of capital that further strengthens our balance sheet while we continue to share, to the extent of our ownership
interest, in the risks and rewards of shopping centers that meet our high quality standards and long-term investment strategy.

The current lack of liquidity in the capital markets is having a corresponding effect on new investment activity in our co-investment partnerships. Our co-
investment partnerships have significant levels of debt, 59.1% of which will mature through 2012, and are subject to significant refinancing risks. As a result of
declines in real estate values during the current recession, the refinancing of maturing loans will require us and our joint venture partners to each contribute our
respective pro-rata share of capital to the joint ventures in order to reduce refinancing requirements to acceptable loan to value levels required for new financings.
While we have been successful refinancing maturing loans, the longer-term impact of the current economic crisis on our ability to access capital, including access
by our joint venture partners, or to obtain future financing to fund maturing debt is unclear. While we believe that our partners have sufficient capital or access
thereto for these future capital requirements, we can provide no assurance that the constrained capital markets will not inhibit their ability to access capital and
meet their future funding requirements. The impact to Regency of a co-investment partner defaulting on its share of a capital call is discussed below under
“Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

Shopping Center Portfolio

The following tables summarize general information related to our shopping center portfolio, which we use to evaluate and monitor our performance.
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June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
Number of Properties   409   440  
Number of Properties    226   224  
Number of Properties    183   216  
Properties in Development   41   45  
Properties in Development   40   44  
Properties in Development   1   1  
Gross Leasable Area   46,267,519   49,644,545  
Gross Leasable Area   24,302,260   24,176,536  
Gross Leasable Area   21,965,259   25,468,009  
Percent Leased   91.8%  92.3% 
Percent Leased   90.2%  90.2% 
Percent Leased   93.6%  94.3% 

 

Combined Basis (includes properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships)
 Consolidated Properties (excludes properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships)

Unconsolidated Properties (only properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships)
 Includes Properties in Development

We seek to reduce our operating and leasing risks through diversification which we achieve by geographically diversifying our shopping centers, avoiding
dependence on any single property, market, or tenant, and owning a portion of our shopping centers through co-investment partnerships.
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The following table is a list of the shopping centers summarized by state and in order of largest holdings presented on a Combined Basis (includes
properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships):
 
   June 30, 2009   December 31, 2008  

Location   
#

Properties  GLA   
% of Total

GLA   
%

Leased  
#

Properties  GLA   
% of Total

GLA   
%

Leased 
California   72  8,990,930  19.4%  91.8%  76  9,597,194  19.3%  91.9% 
Florida   54  5,341,110  11.5%  92.7%  60  6,050,697  12.2%  93.9% 
Texas   36  4,403,510  9.5%  90.5%  36  4,404,025  8.9%  90.5% 
Virginia   29  3,728,926  8.1%  94.9%  30  3,799,919  7.6%  95.6% 
Illinois   23  2,773,048  6.0%  89.0%  24  2,901,919  5.8%  90.0% 
Ohio   16  2,510,659  5.5%  87.4%  17  2,631,530  5.3%  86.7% 
Missouri   23  2,265,422  4.9%  97.2%  23  2,265,422  4.6%  96.8% 
Colorado   20  2,074,966  4.5%  89.8%  22  2,285,926  4.6%  91.4% 
North Carolina   14  2,027,939  4.4%  90.6%  15  2,107,442  4.2%  91.9% 
Georgia   23  2,019,330  4.4%  91.6%  30  2,648,555  5.3%  92.7% 
Maryland   16  1,873,760  4.0%  92.8%  16  1,873,759  3.8%  94.0% 
Pennsylvania   12  1,419,672  3.1%  91.1%  12  1,441,791  2.9%  90.1% 
Washington   11  1,038,514  2.2%  97.1%  13  1,255,836  2.5%  97.0% 
Oregon   10  976,679  2.1%  97.2%  11  1,087,738  2.2%  97.1% 
Tennessee   8  570,235  1.2%  91.1%  8  574,114  1.2%  92.0% 
Massachusetts   3  561,186  1.2%  94.3%  3  561,186  1.1%  93.4% 
Nevada   3  531,068  1.1%  81.4%  3  528,368  1.1%  83.4% 
Arizona   4  496,073  1.1%  84.7%  4  496,073  1.0%  94.3% 
Minnesota   3  483,938  1.0%  97.1%  3  483,938  1.0%  92.9% 
Delaware   4  472,005  1.0%  94.0%  4  472,005  0.9%  95.2% 
South Carolina   6  360,719  0.8%  95.6%  8  451,494  0.9%  96.7% 
Indiana   6  273,257  0.6%  80.3%  6  273,279  0.6%  76.4% 
Wisconsin   2  269,128  0.6%  97.7%  2  269,128  0.5%  97.7% 
Alabama   2  203,206  0.4%  70.1%  3  278,299  0.6%  78.3% 
Connecticut   1  179,860  0.4%  100.0%  1  179,860  0.4%  100.0% 
New Jersey   2  156,482  0.3%  96.2%  2  156,482  0.3%  96.2% 
Michigan   2  118,273  0.3%  83.7%  2  118,273  0.2%  84.9% 
New Hampshire   1  84,793  0.2%  80.9%  1  84,793  0.2%  80.4% 
Dist. of Columbia   2  39,647  0.1%  100.0%  2  39,647  0.1%  100.0% 
Kentucky   1  23,184  0.1%  63.7%  3  325,853  0.7%  90.2% 

         
 

  
 

        
 

  
 

Total   409  46,267,519  100.0%  91.8%  440  49,644,545  100.0%  92.3% 
         

 

  

 

        

 

  

 

The Combined Properties include the consolidated and unconsolidated properties encumbered by mortgage loans of $293.6 million and $2.4 billion, respectively.
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The following table is a list of the shopping centers summarized by state and in order of largest holdings presented for Consolidated Properties (excludes
properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships):
 
   June 30, 2009   December 31, 2008  

Location   
#

Properties  GLA   
% of Total

GLA   
%

Leased  
#

Properties  GLA   
% of Total

GLA   
%

Leased 
California   47  5,747,408  23.7%  91.1%  46  5,668,350  23.5%  89.7% 
Florida   42  4,264,157  17.5%  92.7%  41  4,198,414  17.4%  94.4% 
Texas   28  3,370,865  13.9%  89.9%  28  3,371,380  13.9%  89.9% 
Ohio   14  1,973,586  8.1%  86.3%  14  1,985,392  8.2%  85.3% 
Georgia   17  1,507,612  6.2%  90.7%  16  1,409,622  5.8%  92.0% 
Colorado   14  1,127,722  4.7%  85.7%  14  1,130,771  4.7%  86.2% 
Virginia   7  954,497  3.9%  91.6%  7  958,825  4.0%  90.8% 
North Carolina   9  951,177  3.9%  94.1%  9  951,177  3.9%  94.6% 
Oregon   8  735,527  3.0%  98.0%  8  733,068  3.0%  98.4% 
Tennessee   7  484,170  2.0%  90.2%  7  488,049  2.0%  91.2% 
Washington   6  461,073  1.9%  95.2%  7  538,155  2.2%  95.9% 
Nevada   2  432,004  1.8%  78.6%  2  429,304  1.8%  81.1% 
Illinois   3  414,996  1.7%  83.3%  3  414,996  1.7%  84.7% 
Arizona   3  388,440  1.6%  85.5%  3  388,440  1.6%  93.0% 
Massachusetts   2  375,907  1.5%  91.5%  2  375,907  1.6%  90.5% 
Pennsylvania   4  325,886  1.3%  84.9%  4  347,430  1.4%  77.6% 
Delaware   2  240,418  1.0%  99.2%  2  240,418  1.0%  99.2% 
Michigan   2  118,273  0.5%  83.7%  2  118,273  0.5%  84.9% 
Maryland   1  106,915  0.4%  77.8%  1  106,915  0.4%  77.8% 
New Hampshire   1  84,793  0.4%  80.9%  1  84,793  0.4%  80.4% 
Alabama   1  84,740  0.4%  73.2%  1  84,741  0.4%  68.7% 
South Carolina   2  74,422  0.3%  90.6%  2  74,422  0.3%  90.6% 
Indiana   3  54,488  0.2%  48.7%  3  54,510  0.2%  34.1% 
Kentucky   1  23,184  0.1%  63.7%  1  23,184  0.1%  33.6% 

         
 

  
 

        
 

  
 

Total   226  24,302,260  100.0%  90.2%  224  24,176,536  100.0%  90.2% 
         

 

  

 

        

 

  

 

The Consolidated Properties are encumbered by mortgage loans of $293.6 million.
 

48



Table of Contents

The following table is a list of the shopping centers summarized by state and in order of largest holdings presented for Unconsolidated Properties (only
properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships):
 
   June 30, 2009   December 31, 2008  

Location   
#

Properties  GLA   
% of Total

GLA   
%

Leased  
#

Properties  GLA   
% of Total

GLA   
%

Leased 
California   25  3,243,522  14.8%  93.0%  30  3,928,844  15.4%  94.9% 
Virginia   22  2,774,429  12.6%  96.0%  23  2,841,094  11.2%  97.2% 
Illinois   20  2,358,052  10.7%  90.0%  21  2,486,923  9.8%  90.9% 
Missouri   23  2,265,422  10.3%  97.2%  23  2,265,422  8.9%  96.8% 
Maryland   15  1,766,845  8.0%  93.7%  15  1,766,844  6.9%  95.0% 
Pennsylvania   8  1,093,786  5.0%  92.9%  8  1,094,361  4.3%  94.1% 
Florida   12  1,076,953  4.9%  92.6%  19  1,852,283  7.3%  92.6% 
North Carolina   5  1,076,762  4.9%  87.5%  6  1,156,265  4.5%  89.7% 
Texas   8  1,032,645  4.7%  92.6%  8  1,032,645  4.0%  92.6% 
Colorado   6  947,244  4.3%  94.7%  8  1,155,155  4.5%  96.4% 
Washington   5  577,441  2.6%  98.6%  6  717,681  2.8%  97.8% 
Ohio   2  537,073  2.5%  91.6%  3  646,138  2.5%  91.0% 
Georgia   6  511,718  2.3%  94.3%  14  1,238,933  4.9%  93.6% 
Minnesota   3  483,938  2.2%  97.1%  3  483,938  1.9%  92.9% 
South Carolina   4  286,297  1.3%  96.9%  6  377,072  1.5%  98.0% 
Wisconsin   2  269,128  1.2%  97.7%  2  269,128  1.1%  97.7% 
Oregon   2  241,152  1.1%  94.6%  3  354,670  1.4%  94.3% 
Delaware   2  231,587  1.1%  88.5%  2  231,587  0.9%  91.1% 
Indiana   3  218,769  1.0%  88.2%  3  218,769  0.9%  87.0% 
Massachusetts   1  185,279  0.9%  100.0%  1  185,279  0.7%  99.4% 
Connecticut   1  179,860  0.8%  100.0%  1  179,860  0.7%  100.0% 
New Jersey   2  156,482  0.7%  96.2%  2  156,482  0.6%  96.2% 
Alabama   1  118,466  0.5%  67.9%  2  193,558  0.8%  82.5% 
Arizona   1  107,633  0.5%  81.9%  1  107,633  0.4%  98.9% 
Nevada   1  99,064  0.5%  93.4%  1  99,064  0.4%  93.0% 
Tennessee   1  86,065  0.4%  96.2%  1  86,065  0.3%  96.2% 
Dist. of Columbia   2  39,647  0.2%  100.0%  2  39,647  0.2%  100.0% 
Kentucky   —    —    —     —     2  302,669  1.2%  94.6% 

         
 

  
 

        
 

  
 

Total   183  21,965,259  100.0%  93.6%  216  25,468,009  100.0%  94.3% 
         

 

  

 

        

 

  

 

The Unconsolidated Properties are encumbered by mortgage loans of $2.4 billion.
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The following table summarizes our four largest tenants, each of which is a grocery tenant, occupying the shopping centers at June 30, 2009:
 

Grocery Anchor   
Number of
Stores   

Percentage of
Company-

owned GLA   

Percentage of
Annualized

Base Rent  
Kroger   56  8.6%  5.4% 
Publix   56  6.8%  4.2% 
Safeway   62  5.7%  3.7% 
Super Valu   34  3.3%  2.6% 
 

For the Combined Properties including stores owned by grocery anchors that are attached to our centers.
 

GLA and annualized base rent include the Consolidated Properties plus Regency’s pro-rata share of the Unconsolidated Properties.

Although base rent is supported by long-term lease contracts, tenants who file bankruptcy are given the right to cancel any or all of their leases and close
related stores, or continue to operate. In the event that a tenant with a significant number of leases in our shopping centers files bankruptcy and cancels its leases,
we could experience a significant reduction in our revenues and tenant receivables. We are closely monitoring industry trends and sales data to help us identify
declines in retail categories or tenants who might be experiencing financial difficulties as a result of slowing sales, lack of credit, changes in retail formats or
increased competition, especially in light of the current downturn in the economy. As a result of our findings, we may reduce new leasing, suspend leasing, or
curtail the allowance for the construction of leasehold improvements within a certain retail category or to a specific retailer.

In June 2009, EJ’s Shoes filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. EJ’s Shoes has not yet assumed or rejected its lease at its only location in one of our
shopping centers. The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with this store is approximately $177,000 or less than 1% of our annual base rent on a pro-
rata basis.

In June 2009, Eddie Bauer filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Eddie Bauer has not yet assumed or rejected its leases at its two locations in our
shopping centers. The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with these two stores is approximately $341,000 or less than 1% of our annual base rent on a
pro-rata basis.

In March 2009, Bi-Lo Supermarkets filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Bi-Lo has not yet assumed or rejected its lease at its only location in one of
our shopping centers. The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with this store is approximately $102,000 or less than 1% of our annual base rent on a
pro-rata basis.

In February 2009, S&K Menswear filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. S&K Menswear has rejected all three leases in our shopping centers and one
remains active. The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with this store is approximately $115,000 or less than 1% of our annual base rent on a pro-rata
basis.

In February 2009, Ritz Camera/Wolf Camera/Boater’s World (“Ritz”) filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Ritz has rejected eight leases in our
shopping centers and three remain active. The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with these active leases is approximately $184,000 or less than 1%
of our annual base rent on a pro-rata basis.

In December 2008, Bally’s Total Fitness filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Bally’s Total Fitness has rejected one lease in our shopping centers.
The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with this store is approximately $84,000 or less than 1% of our annual base rent on a pro-rata basis.
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In September 2008, Washington Mutual (“WaMu”) was taken over by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) as receiver. Through
receivership proceedings the FDIC can reject leases. To date, the FDIC has rejected 11 of the 26 WaMu leases in our shopping centers. The annual base rent on a
pro-rata basis associated with these 15 stores is approximately $1.3 million or less than 1% of our annual base rent on a pro-rata basis.

In October 2007, Movie Gallery filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. We currently have 16 Movie Gallery stores occupying our shopping centers.
The annual base rent on a pro-rata basis associated with these 16 stores is approximately $1.1 million or less than 1%. At June 30, 2009, we were closely
monitoring leases with 95 video rental stores including Movie Gallery representing $7.6 million of annual base rent on a pro-rata basis.

We continue to monitor tenants who have announced store closings and we expect as the current economic downturn continues, additional retailers will
announce store closings and/or bankruptcies that could affect our shopping centers. During the three months ended June 30, 2009, we experienced a higher tenant
default rate as compared to previous quarters primarily related to our local tenants, which are generally defined as tenants operating five or fewer stores, primarily
restaurants, fitness, dry cleaners and tanning salons, to name a few. In addition, we noted significant deterioration in our overall accounts receivable collection
rate. As a result, we increased our allowance for doubtful accounts as described further below within our results from operations.

We are closely monitoring certain national tenants who have negotiated co-tenancy clauses in their lease agreements. Co-tenancy clauses have several
variants: they may allow a tenant to postpone a store opening if certain other tenants fail to open their store; they may allow a tenant the opportunity to close their
store prior to lease expiration if another tenant closes their store prior to lease expiration; or more commonly, they may allow a tenant to pay reduced levels of
rent until a certain number of tenants open their stores within the same shopping center. As the current recession continues to depress retail sales, we could
experience reductions in rent and occupancy related to tenants exercising their co-tenancy clauses. We believe that our investment focus on neighborhood and
community shopping centers that conveniently provide daily necessities will help to mitigate the current economy’s negative impact on our shopping centers.
However, the negative impact could still be significant, especially in our larger format community shopping centers that contain a substantial number of tenant
leases with co-tenancy clauses. We are not currently aware of the pending bankruptcy of any tenants in our shopping centers that would cause a significant
reduction in our revenues; however, we continue to monitor and communicate with those tenants experiencing financial distress in the current economic
environment. No tenant represents more than 6% of our annual base rent on a pro-rata basis.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes net cash flows related to operating, investing, and financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (in
thousands):
 

   2009   2008  
Net cash provided by operating activities   $103,393   113,950  
Net cash used in investing activities    (84,815)  (154,503) 
Net cash provided by financing activities    86,681   63,489  

    
 

  
 

Net increase in cash and equivalents   $105,259   22,936  
    

 

  

 

As of June 30, 2009, we estimate that we will require approximately $918.1 million through 2011 to repay $642.1 million of maturing debt, complete in-
process developments, and to fund estimated capital calls from co-investment partnerships for mortgage refinancings of $124.3 million (our “Future Capital
Needs”). We have begun executing our plan to source the necessary funds to meet these Future Capital Needs. Commitments available to us under our unsecured
line of credit (the “Line”) and revolving credit facility total $713.8 million. As of August 7, 2009, we had no balance outstanding on the Line or the revolving
credit facility. The Line is available to us through January 2011, at which time we have the
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option to extend $600.0 million of the commitment to January 2012. On July 1, 2009, we closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties
(the “Allianz Loan”). On April 24, 2009, we completed a public offering of 10.0 million common shares at $32.50 per share resulting in proceeds of $310.9
million, net of issuance costs, a portion of which was used to fully repay the $180.0 million balance on the Line and fund construction costs. On July 1, 2009 our
cash balance including the proceeds from the Allianz Loan approximated $232.8 million. We expect to fund additional Future Capital Needs through issuances of
new long-term debt as existing loans mature in the future. Capital required for the remainder of 2009 is estimated to be $73.7 million related primarily to
construction costs of in-process development projects.

We expect that cash generated from operating activities will provide the necessary funds to pay our operating expenses, interest expense, scheduled
principal payments on outstanding debt, and capital expenditures necessary to maintain our shopping centers. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and
2008, we incurred capital expenditures to maintain our shopping centers of $4.9 million and $6.1 million; we paid scheduled principal payments of $2.6 million
and $2.3 million to our lenders on mortgage loans; and we paid dividends to our stockholders and unit holders of $98.2 million and $111.4 million, respectively.
The Board of Directors continuously reviews the Company’s operations and will make decisions about future dividend payments on a quarterly basis. In May,
2009, as part of our plan to source the necessary funds to meet our Future Capital Needs, the Board of Directors reduced our quarterly dividend to $0.4625 per
share as compared to quarterly dividends paid during 2008 of $0.725 per share. The estimated aggregate funds that the Company will retain from the reduced
dividend will approximate $55.4 million annually. Although our dividend amount has been reduced, our dividend policy remains unchanged in that we expect to
continue paying an aggregate amount of dividends to our shareholders that approximates our REIT taxable income.

At June 30, 2009 we had 41 properties under construction or undergoing major renovations on a Combined Basis, which when completed, will represent a
net investment of $868.0 million after projected sales of adjacent land and out-parcels. This compares to 45 properties that were under construction at
December 31, 2008 representing an investment of $993.2 million upon completion. We estimate that we will earn an average return on investment from our
current development projects of 7.3% when completed and fully leased. Average returns have declined over previous years primarily as a result of higher costs
associated with the acquisition of land and construction, longer lease up periods, and reduced market rental rates. Costs necessary to complete the current
development projects, net of reimbursements and projected land sales, are estimated to be approximately $97.9 million and will likely be expended through 2012.

We expect to repay maturing secured mortgage loans and credit lines primarily from similar new issues. We have $33.4 million of secured mortgage loans
maturing through 2011. Our joint ventures have $1.2 billion of secured mortgage loans and credit lines maturing through 2011, and our pro-rata share is $292.0
million. We believe that in order to refinance the maturing joint venture loans, we, along with our partners, will be required to contribute our pro-rata share based
on our respective ownership interest percentage of the capital necessary to reduce the refinancing amounts to acceptable loan to value levels required for this type
of financing in the current commercial mortgage markets. Currently, the estimated total capital contributions to our joint ventures from all partners for the
repayment of maturing debt, net of the proceeds from new debt issues, is estimated to be in a range of 40% - 45% of the maturing loan balances. However, in
certain cases, we may not be able to refinance properties that lack anchor tenants, are anchored by under-performing stores, or are operating in weak markets,
which would require full loan repayment at maturity. We intend to fund our pro-rata share of any capital calls from our Line, revolving credit facility or available
cash balances. A more detailed loan maturity schedule is included below under Notes Payable.

We believe that our partners have sufficient capital or access thereto for these future capital requirements, however, we can provide no assurance that the
current economic crisis will not inhibit their ability to access capital and meet their future funding requirements. We communicate with our co-investment
partners regularly regarding the operating and capital budgets of our co-investment partnerships, and believe that we will successfully facilitate the refinancing of
maturing debt in the current
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challenging capital markets, and when necessary, execute partnership owned asset sales to generate capital for debt repayments or facilitate the full or partial sale
of a partner’s interest to a more financially sound investor partner. However, in the event that a co-investment partner was unable to fund its share of the capital
requirements of the partnership, we would have the right, but not the obligation, to loan the defaulting partner the amount of its capital call at an interest rate at
the lesser of prime plus a pre-defined spread or the maximum rate allowed by law. A decision to loan to a defaulting partner, which would be secured by the
defaulting partner’s partnership interest, would be subject to our evaluation of our own capital commitments and sources to fund those commitments.
Alternatively, should we determine that our partners will not have sufficient capital to meet future requirements, we would have the right to trigger liquidation of
the partnership. For the co-investment partnerships that have distribution-in-kind provisions, and own multiple properties, a liquidation of the partnership could
be completed by either a distribution in kind of the properties to each partner in proportion to its partnership interest, open market sale, or a combination of both
methods. Our co-investment partnership properties have been financed with non-recourse loans that represent 98.6% of the total debt of the unconsolidated co-
investment partnerships at June 30, 2009 including lines of credit. We and our partners have no guarantees related to these loans. In those partnerships which have
distribution-in-kind provisions, if we trigger liquidation by distribution in kind, each partner would receive title to properties selected in a rotation process for
distribution and would assume any related loans secured by the properties distributed. The loan agreements generally provide for assumption by either partner
after obtaining any required lender consent. We would only be responsible for those loans we assume through the distribution in kind, and only to the extent of the
value of the property we receive since after assumption through the distribution in kind the loans would remain non-recourse. We also have a 50% investment
interest in two single asset joint ventures with loans totaling $35.3 million which contain guarantees from each partner limited however to each partner’s
respective 50% interest. These loans were originated for the purpose of real estate development.

We currently expect that maturing unsecured public debt will be repaid from the proceeds of similar new unsecured issues in the future if those capital
markets are available, although in the current environment, new issues are significantly more expensive than historical issues. To the extent that issuing unsecured
debt in the public markets is cost prohibitive or unavailable, we believe that we have sufficient unsecured assets that we could finance with secured mortgages
and repay the unsecured public debt. We have $160.0 million and $240.0 million of public debt maturing in 2010 and 2011, respectively, which are included in
the Future Capital Needs described above. Our joint ventures are currently unrated and therefore unable to issue public debt.

Our preferred stock and preferred units, though callable by us, are not redeemable in cash at the option of the holders.

Although common or preferred equity raised in the public markets is a funding option, given the state of the current capital markets, our access to these
markets could be limited even though we successfully completed a $325.0 million, 10.0 million common share public offering in April 2009. When conditions for
the issuance of equity are acceptable, we might consider issuing new equity to fund new investment opportunities, fund new developments or repay maturing debt
as part of a financing plan to maintain our leverage ratios at acceptable levels. At June 30, 2009, we had an unlimited amount available under our shelf
registration for equity securities and RCLP had an unlimited amount available under its shelf registration for debt.

Investments in Real Estate Partnerships

We account for certain investments in real estate partnerships using the equity method. We have determined that these investments are not variable interest
entities as defined in Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 46(R) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN
46(R)”) and do not require consolidation under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue (“EITF”) No. 04-5 “Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General
Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights” (“EITF 04-5”) or the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ (“AICPA”) Statement of Position (“SOP”) 78-9, “Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventures” (“SOP 78-9”), and therefore
are subject to the
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voting interest model in determining our basis of accounting. Major decisions, including property acquisitions not meeting pre-established investment criteria,
dispositions, financings, annual budgets and dissolution of the ventures are subject to the approval of all partners.

We account for profit recognition on sales of real estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 66, “Accounting
for Sales of Real Estate” (“Statement 66”). Recognition of gains from sales to co-investment partnerships is recorded on only that portion of the sales not
attributable to our ownership interest unless there are certain provisions in the partnership agreement which allow the Company a unilateral right to initiate a
distribution in kind (“DIK”) upon liquidation, as described further below under our Critical Accounting Policies and Note 1(b) Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies in our Consolidated Financial Statements each included herein. The presence of such DIK provisions requires that we apply a more
restrictive method of gain recognition (“Restricted Gain Method”) on sales of properties to these co-investment partnerships. This method considers our potential
ability to receive property through a DIK on which partial gain has been recognized, and ensures maximum gain deferral upon sale to a partnership containing
these unilateral DIK rights (“DIK-JV”). We have concluded, through consultation with our auditors and the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”), that these dissolution provisions constitute in-substance call/put options under the guidance of Statement 66, and represent a form of continuing
involvement with respect to property that we have sold to these DIK-JV’s.

The operations and gains related to properties sold to our investments in real estate partnerships are not classified as discontinued operations because we
continue to provide to these shopping centers property management services under market rate agreements with our co-investment partnerships. For those
properties acquired by the joint venture from unrelated parties, we are required to contribute our pro-rata share based on our ownership interest of the purchase
price to the partnerships.

At June 30, 2009, we had investments in real estate partnerships of $338.1 million. The following table is a summary of unconsolidated combined assets
and liabilities of these co-investment partnerships and our pro-rata share (see note below) at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (dollars in thousands):
 

   2009   2008
Number of Joint Ventures   18   19
Regency’s Ownership   16.35%-50%   16.35%-50%
Number of Properties   183   216
Combined Assets   $4,211,592  $4,862,730
Combined Liabilities   2,636,661  2,973,410
Combined Equity   1,574,931  1,889,320
Regency’s Share of :     

Assets   $1,009,665  $1,171,218
Liabilities   623,600  705,452

 

 Pro-rata financial information is not, and is not intended to be, a presentation in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. However,
management believes that providing such information is useful to investors in assessing the impact of its investments in real estate partnership activities on
the operations of Regency, which includes such items on a single line presentation under the equity method in its consolidated financial statements.

Investments in real estate partnerships are primarily composed of co-investment partnerships in which we currently invest with three co-investment
partners and an open-end real estate fund (“Regency Retail Partners” or the “Fund”), as further described below. In addition to earning our pro-rata share of net
income or loss (including impairments) in each of these partnerships, we receive market-based fees for asset management, disposition, property management,
leasing, investment, and financing services.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, we received fees from these co-investment partnerships of $13.7 million and $20.2 million, respectively.

Our investments in real estate partnerships as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 consist of the following (in thousands):
 
   Ownership  2009   2008
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency (MCWR I)   25.00%  $ 4,545  11,137
Macquarie CountryWide Direct (MCWR I)   25.00%   —    3,760
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency II (MCWR II)   24.95%   162,850  197,602
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency III (MCWR III)   24.95%   422  623
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency-DESCO (MCWR-DESCO)   16.35%   25,084  21,924
Columbia Regency Retail Partners (Columbia I)   20.00%   29,063  29,704
Columbia Regency Partners II (Columbia II)   20.00%   11,865  12,858
Cameron Village LLC (Cameron)   30.00%   18,851  19,479
RegCal, LLC (RegCal)   25.00%   13,419  13,766
Regency Retail Partners (the Fund)   20.00%   22,980  23,838
Other investments in real estate partnerships   50.00%   49,028  48,717

        

Total    $338,107  383,408
        

Investments in real estate partnerships are reported net of deferred gains of $56.2 million and $88.3 million at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively. Cumulative deferred gain amounts related to each co-investment partnership are described below.

We co-invest with the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (“OPERF”) in three co-investment partnerships, two of which we have ownership
interests of 20% (“Columbia I” and “Columbia II”) and one in which we have an ownership interest of 30% (“Cameron”). Our investment in the three co-
investment partnerships with OPERF totals $59.8 million and represents 1.4% of our total assets at June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2009, the Columbia co-investment
partnerships had total assets of $750.9 million and net income of $3.1 million for the six months ended. Our share of Columbia’s total assets was $162.1 million
which represents 3.8% of our total assets.

As of June 30, 2009, Columbia I owned 14 shopping centers, had total assets of $321.3 million, and net income of $3.6 million for the six months ended.
The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, we have applied the Restricted
Gain Method to determine the amount of gain that we recognize on property sales to Columbia. During 2009, we did not sell any properties to Columbia I. Since
the inception of Columbia in 2001, we have recognized gain of $2.0 million on partial sales to Columbia and deferred gain of $4.3 million. In December 2008, we
earned and recognized a $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive Return fee from OPERF based on Columbia I’s out performance of the cumulative National Council of
Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (“NCREIF”) index since the inception of the partnership and a hurdle rate as outlined in the partnership agreement. We
collected this fee in full in April 2009.

As of June 30, 2009, Columbia II owned 16 shopping centers, had total assets of $319.0 million, and a net loss of approximately $10,000 for the six months
ended. The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, we have applied the
Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of gain that we recognize on property sales to Columbia II. During 2009, we did not sell any properties to
Columbia II. Since the inception of Columbia II in 2004, we have recognized gain of $9.1 million on partial sales to Columbia II and deferred gain of $15.7
million.

As of June 30, 2009, Cameron owned one shopping center, had total assets of $110.6 million, and a net loss of approximately $484,000 for the six months
ended. The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require us to apply the Restricted Gain Method. Since the inception of
Cameron in 2004, we have not sold any properties to Cameron.
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We co-invest with the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (“CalSTRS”) in a joint venture (“RegCal”) in which we have a 25% ownership
interest. As of June 30, 2009, RegCal owned seven shopping centers, had total assets of $156.5 million, and net income of approximately $602,000 for the six
months ended. Our share of RegCal’s total assets was $39.1 million which represents less than 1% of our total assets. The partnership agreement has a unilateral
right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation; therefore, we have applied the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of
gain that we recognize on property sales to RegCal. During 2009, we did not sell any properties to RegCal. Since the inception of RegCal in 2004, we have
recognized gain of $10.1 million on partial sales to RegCal and deferred gain of $3.4 million.

We co-invest with Macquarie CountryWide Trust of Australia (“MCW”) in four co-investment partnerships, one in which we have an ownership interest of
25% (“MCWR I”), two in which we have an ownership interest of 24.95% (“MCWR II” and “MCWR III”), and one in which we have an ownership interest of
16.35% (“MCWR-DESCO”). Our investment in the four co-investment partnerships with MCW totals $192.9 million and represents 4.5% of our total assets at
June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2009, MCW had total assets of $2.8 billion and a net loss of $102.9 million. Our share of the co-investment partnerships’ total assets
was $667.1 million and $25.4 million, respectively, which represents 15.7% of our total assets.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR I owned nine shopping centers, had total assets of $112.5 million, and net income of $3.8 million for the six months ended.
The partnership agreement has a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK; therefore, we have applied the Restricted Gain Method to
determine the amount of gain we recognize on property sales to MCWR I. During 2009, we did not sell any properties to MCWR I. Since the inception of
MCWR I in 2001, we have recognized gain of $27.5 million on partial sales to MCWR I and deferred gain of $46.9 million. On January 14, 2009, under the terms
of the MCWR I partnership agreement, MCW elected to dissolve the partnership. We are in the process of liquidating the partnership through a DIK, which
provides for distribution of the properties to each partner under an alternating selection process, ultimately in proportion to the value of each partner’s respective
ownership interest in the partnership as of the date of liquidation. The total fair value of the properties was $467.3 million based on third party appraisals, net of
debt. As of June 30, 2009, MCW had received 27 properties and we had received four properties through the DIK. The four properties we received had a fair
value of $102.6 million, net of debt, and consistent with the Restricted Gain Method, the properties were recorded at the net carrying value of our equity
investment of $21.1 million, net of deferred gain of $31.7 million. As a result, no gain or loss was recognized on the dissolution. The dissolution is expected to be
completed by the end of 2009 subject to required lender consents for ownership transfer and we expect to receive our final two additional properties and MCW
their final seven additional properties. During 2009, MCWR I sold one shopping center to a third party for $7.8 million and recognized a gain of $3.7 million.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR II owned 86 shopping centers, had total assets of $2.2 billion and net loss of $104.1 million for the six months ended. The net
loss was primarily related to the provision for impairment recorded in June 2009 as a result of MCW’s decision to sell its interest in MCWR II. We considered
MCW’s sale a “triggering event” for an impairment analysis and reviewed the MCWR II portfolio identifying 13 properties targeted for sale over the next three
years. These properties were previously expected to be held and used long term and this change in the properties’ holding periods resulted in a provision for
impairment of $99.8 million. See below for further discussion related to the MCW sale of its partnership interest. At December 31, 2008, the partnership
agreement did not contain any DIK provisions that would require us to apply the Restricted Gain Method. However, in January 2009, the partnership agreement
was amended to include a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon liquidation which will be effective January 1, 2010;
therefore, we will apply the Restricted Gain Method if additional properties are sold to MCWR II. During 2009, we did not sell any properties to MCWR II. Since
the inception of MCWR II in 2005, we have recognized gain of $2.3 million on partial sales to MCWR II and deferred gain of approximately $766,000.

On July 17, 2009, we announced that MCW had agreed to sell its interest in MCWR II to Global Retail Investors LLC (“GRI”), a joint venture between the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System
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(“CalPERS”) and an affiliate of First Washington Realty, Inc. In conjunction with the sale, we have options to increase our ownership in MCWR II to 40%.
Contracts have been signed for a phased sale process that will result in multiple closings over the next 24 months. The first phase involved the sale of 45% of the
partnership to GRI which closed on July 31, 2009 and we received a disposition fee of $7.8 million at closing. The second phase involves the sale of an additional
15% of the partnership to GRI and is scheduled to close upon receipt of lender consents for the balance of the property-level loans. We have two options to
increase our ownership in the partnership by up to 15% in total. One option allows us to purchase up to an additional 10% interest in the portfolio from MCW
which must be exercised within 21 months of the initial closing. If we choose not to exercise the additional 10% option, the option would be available to GRI. If
GRI does not purchase the remaining 10%, MCW can initiate a DIK to recover its remaining 10% interest. The other option allows us to purchase up to an
additional 5% interest in the partnership from MCW which must be exercised by the later of March 31, 2010, or GRI’s second phase closing. In the event that we
do not exercise the 5% option, GRI must acquire the additional 5% interest. Assuming we exercise all of our options, our ownership in MCW II will increase to
40% and GRI would own 60% of the partnership. We will remain the managing member of the partnership and retain management and leasing responsibilities.
For our services and efforts, we will receive a disposition fee from MCW equal to 1% of the gross sales price paid by GRI for MCW’s partnership interest and a
7.7% discount on its purchase options. If the options are not exercised by us, we will receive cash payments of up to $17.0 million.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR III owned four shopping centers, had total assets of $65.5 million, and a net loss of approximately $190,000 for the six
months ended. At June 30, 2009, the partnership agreement did not contain any DIK provisions that would require us to apply the Restricted Gain Method.
However, in January 2009, the partnership agreement was amended to include a unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive a DIK upon
liquidation which will be effective January 1, 2010; therefore, we will apply the Restricted Gain Method if additional properties are sold to MCWR III. During
2009, we did not sell any properties to MCWR III. Since the inception of MCWR III in 2005, we have recognized gain of $14.1 million on partial sales to
MCWR III and deferred gain of $4.7 million.

As of June 30, 2009, MCWR-DESCO owned 32 shopping centers, had total assets of $386.4 million and recorded a net loss of $2.4 million for the six
months ended. The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require us to apply the Restricted Gain Method. Since the inception of
MCWR-DESCO in 2007, we have not sold any properties to MCWR-DESCO.

We co-invest with Regency Retail Partners (the “Fund”), an open-ended, infinite life investment fund in which we have an ownership interest of 20%. As
of June 30, 2009, the Fund owned nine shopping centers, had total assets of $373.5 million, and recorded a net loss of $1.6 million for the six months ended. Our
share of the Fund’s total assets was $74.6 million which represents 1.8% of our total assets. The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that
would require us to apply the Restricted Gain Method. During 2009, we did not sell any properties to the Fund. Since the inception of the Fund in 2006, we have
recognized gains of $71.6 million on partial sales to the Fund and deferred gains of $17.9 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have off-balance sheet arrangements, financings, or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, also known as variable
interest entities.

Notes Payable

In conjunction with properties distributed to us as part of the in-process liquidation of MCWR I, which began on January 14, 2009, we assumed mortgage
loans with carrying values of $17.0 million and $42.1 million with ten-year terms and interest rates of 6.13% and 6.38%, respectively.
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On March 5, 2008, we entered into a Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and a group of other banks to provide us with a $341.5 million, three-year
term loan facility (the “Term Facility”) maturing in February 2011. The Term Facility includes a term loan amount of $227.7 million plus a $113.8 million
revolving credit facility that is accessible at our discretion. The term loan has a variable interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 105 basis points which was 1.43% and
3.30% at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, and the revolving portion has a variable interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 90 basis points. The
proceeds from the funding of the Term Facility were used to reduce the balance on the Line. The balance on the Term Facility was $227.7 million at June 30,
2009 and December 31, 2008. There was no balance on the revolving credit facility at June 30, 2009 or December 31, 2008.

We have a loan agreement under the Line with a commitment of $600.0 million and the right to expand the Line by an additional $150.0 million subject to
additional lender syndication. The Line has a four-year term maturing in February 2011 with a one-year extension at our option and a current interest rate of
LIBOR plus 40 basis points subject to maintaining our corporate credit and senior unsecured ratings at BBB+. The $180.0 million balance on the Line was paid in
full in April 2009 and there was no balance at June 30, 2009. The balance on the Line was $70.0 million at December 31, 2008 with a contractual interest rate of
1.34% based on LIBOR plus 40 basis points.

Including both the Line commitment and the Term Facility (collectively, “Unsecured credit facilities”), we have $941.5 million of total capacity and the
spread paid is dependent upon our maintaining specific investment-grade ratings. We are also required to comply with certain financial covenants as defined in
the Credit Agreement such as Minimum Net Worth, Ratio of Total Liabilities to Gross Asset Value (“GAV”) and Ratio of Recourse Secured Indebtedness to GAV,
Ratio of Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”) to Fixed Charges, and other covenants customary with this type of
unsecured financing. As of June 30, 2009, management believes we are in compliance with all financial covenants for our Unsecured credit facilities. Our
Unsecured credit facilities are used primarily to finance the acquisition and development of real estate, but are also available for general working-capital
purposes.

Notes payable consist of secured mortgage loans and unsecured public debt. Mortgage loans may be prepaid, but could be subject to yield maintenance
premiums. Mortgage loans are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest or interest only, and mature over various terms through 2018,
whereas, interest on unsecured public debt is payable semi-annually and the debt matures over various terms through 2017. We intend to repay mortgage loans at
maturity with proceeds from the Unsecured credit facilities. Fixed interest rates on mortgage notes payable range from 5.22% to 8.40% and average 6.32%. We
have one variable rate mortgage loan in the amount of $5.0 million with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 350 basis points maturing on August 1, 2009. We
have a commitment for a three-year extension and are currently negotiating new loan terms with the existing lender.

Outstanding debt at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 consists of the following (in thousands):
 

   2009   2008
Notes payable:     

Fixed rate mortgage loans   $ 288,589  235,150
Variable rate mortgage loans    5,049  5,130
Fixed rate unsecured loans    1,547,816  1,597,624

       

Total notes payable    1,841,454  1,837,904
Unsecured credit facilities    227,667  297,667

       

Total   $ 2,069,121  2,135,571
       

At June 30, 2009, 88.8% of our total debt had fixed interest rates, compared with 85.8% at December 31, 2008. We intend to limit the percentage of
variable interest rate debt to be no more than 30% of total debt, which we believe to be an acceptable risk. Currently, our variable rate debt represents 11.2% of
our total debt. Based upon the variable interest rate debt outstanding at June 30, 2009, if
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variable interest rates were to increase by 1%, our annual interest expense would increase by $2.3 million.

The carrying value of our variable rate notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities are based upon a spread above LIBOR which is lower than the
spreads available in the current credit market, causing the fair value of such variable rate debt to be below its carrying value. The fair value of fixed rate loans are
estimated using cash flows discounted at current market rates available to us for debt with similar terms and maturities. Fixed rate loans assumed in connection
with real estate acquisitions are recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements at fair value at the time of acquisition excluding those loans
assumed in DIK liquidations which are assumed at carrying value. Based on the estimates used, the fair value of notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities
is approximately $1.5 billion and $1.3 billion at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

As of June 30, 2009, scheduled principal repayments on notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities were as follows (in thousands):
 

Scheduled Principal Payments by Year:   

Scheduled
Principal
Payments   

Mortgage Loan
Maturities   

Unsecured
Maturities   Total  

2009   $ 2,660  5,049   —     7,709  
2010    5,393  17,043   160,000   182,436  
2011    5,291  11,276   467,667   484,234  
2012    5,609  —     250,000   255,609  
2013    5,536  16,356   —     21,892  
Beyond 5 Years    13,080  207,128   900,000   1,120,208  
Unamortized debt discounts, net    —    (783)  (2,184)  (2,967) 

       
 

  
 

  
 

Total   $ 37,569  256,069   1,775,483   2,069,121  
       

 

  

 

  

 

 

Includes unsecured public debt and Unsecured credit facilities

At June 30, 2009, our investments in real estate partnerships had notes payable of $2.5 billion maturing through 2028, of which 98.4% had weighted
average fixed interest rates of 5.6%. The remaining notes payable had variable interest rates based on LIBOR plus a spread in a range of 50 to 200 basis points.
Our pro-rata share of these loans was $586.3 million. We and our partners have no guarantees related to these loans except for two loans totaling $35.3 million.
These two loans contain “several” guarantees related to our 50% investment interest in two single asset partnerships. As of June 30, 2009, scheduled principal
repayments on notes payable held by our investments in real estate partnerships were as follows (in thousands):
 

Scheduled Principal Payments by Year:   

Scheduled
Principal
Payments   

Mortgage Loan
Maturities   

Unsecured
Maturities   Total   

Regency’s
Pro-Rata

Share
2009   $ 1,845  36,578  12,348  50,771  10,776
2010    3,664  645,223  26,685  675,572  167,811
2011    3,320  462,916  —    466,236  115,320
2012    4,050  247,907  —    251,957  62,255
2013    3,809  32,447  —    36,256  8,900
Beyond 5 Years    30,503  953,562  —    984,065  220,102
Unamortized debt premiums, net    —    5,973  —    5,973  1,161

                

Total   $ 47,191  2,384,606  39,033  2,470,830  586,325
                

We are exposed to capital market risk such as changes in interest rates. In order to manage the volatility related to interest rate risk, we originate new debt
with fixed interest rates, or we may enter into interest rate hedging arrangements. We do not utilize derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes. We account for derivative instruments under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“Statement 133”) as amended by SFAS No. 149 “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“Statement 149”). On March 10, 2006, we entered into four forward-starting interest rate swaps totaling $396.7 million with fixed rates of
5.399%, 5.415%, 5.399%, and 5.415%. On April 16, 2009, we paid $20.0 million to partially settle $106.0 million of the $396.7 million interest rate swaps in
place to hedge forecasted debt. On July 1, 2009, we closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of 7.75% and a
10-year term. For $90.7 million of the remaining Swaps, we continue to expect to issue new secured or unsecured debt for a term of 7 to 12 years during the
period between June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2010. For $200.0 million of the remaining Swaps, we continue to expect to issue new debt for a term of 7 to 12 years
during the period between March 30, 2010 and March 30, 2011. The change in fair value of these swaps from inception was a liability of $27.6 million at June 30,
2009. The valuation of these derivative instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the
expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable
market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates, and implied volatilities. To comply with the provisions of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“Statement 157”) as amended by FASB Staff Position “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157” (“FSP FAS 157-2”), we incorporate credit
valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both our nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair value
measurements. Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit
valuation adjustments associated with our derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads, to evaluate the likelihood of default by
ourselves and our counterparties.

Equity

From time to time, we issue equity in the form of exchangeable operating partnership units or preferred units of RCLP, or in the form of preferred or
common stock of Regency Centers Corporation as follows:

Preferred Stock

The Series 3, 4, and 5 preferred shares are perpetual, are not convertible into our common stock, and are redeemable at par upon our election beginning five
years after the issuance date. None of the terms of the Preferred Stock contain any unconditional obligations that would require us to redeem the securities at any
time or for any purpose and we do not currently anticipate redeeming any preferred stock. Terms and conditions of the three series of Preferred stock outstanding
as of June 30, 2009 are summarized as follows:
 

Series   
Shares

Outstanding   
Liquidation
Preference   

Distribution
Rate   

Callable
By

Company
Series 3   3,000,000  $ 75,000,000  7.45%  04/03/08
Series 4   5,000,000   125,000,000  7.25%  08/31/09
Series 5   3,000,000   75,000,000  6.70%  08/02/10

          

  11,000,000  $275,000,000   
          

Common Stock

On April 24, 2009, we completed a public offering of 10.0 million common shares at $32.50 per share resulting in proceeds of $310.9 million, net of
issuance costs. The funds were used to pay-off the balance of the Line, which had a balance of $180.0 million, and the remaining amount of approximately $130.0
million was deposited in our cash accounts to be used for future general working capital needs including repayment of maturing debt, investments in real estate
partnership capital calls to the extent required based on our respective ownership interest in such partnership, and costs to complete in-process development
projects.
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Noncontrolling Interests of Preferred Units

We have issued Preferred Units through RCLP in various amounts since 1998 primarily to institutional investors in private placements. Generally, the
Preferred Units may be exchanged by the holders for Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock after a specified date at an exchange rate of one share for one unit.
The Preferred Units and the related Preferred Stock are not convertible into our common stock. At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, only the Series D
Preferred Units were outstanding with a face value of $50.0 million and a fixed distribution rate of 7.45%. These Units may be called by us beginning
September 29, 2009, and have no stated maturity or mandatory redemption. Included in the Series D Preferred Units are original issuance costs of $842,023 that
will be expensed if they are redeemed in the future.

Noncontrolling Interest of Exchangeable Operating Partnerships Units

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had 468,211 redeemable operating partnership units (“OP Units”) outstanding, respectively. The
redemption value of the redeemable OP Units is based on the closing market price of Regency’s common stock, which was $34.91 and $46.70 per share as of
June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, an aggregate redemption value of $16.3 million and $21.9 million, respectively.

Noncontrolling Interests of Limited Partners’ Interest in Consolidated Partnerships

Limited partners’ interests in consolidated partnerships not owned by us are classified as noncontrolling interests on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Subject to certain conditions and pursuant to the conditions of the agreement, we have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase the other
member’s interest or sell our own interest in these consolidated partnerships. At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, our noncontrolling interest in these
consolidated partnerships was $9.1 million and $8.0 million, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Knowledge about our accounting policies is necessary for a complete understanding of our financial results, and discussion and analysis of these results.
The preparation of our financial statements requires that we make certain estimates that impact the balance of assets and liabilities at a financial statement date
and the reported amount of income and expenses during a financial reporting period. These accounting estimates are based upon, but not limited to, our
judgments about historical results, current economic activity, and industry accounting standards. They are considered to be critical because of their significance to
the financial statements and the possibility that future events may differ from those judgments, or that the use of different assumptions could result in materially
different estimates. We review these estimates on a periodic basis to ensure reasonableness; however, the amounts we may ultimately realize could differ from
such estimates.

Revenue Recognition and Tenant Receivables – Tenant receivables represent revenues recognized in our financial statements, and include base rent,
percentage rent, and expense recoveries from tenants for common area maintenance costs, insurance and real estate taxes. We analyze tenant receivables,
historical bad debt levels, customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts. In
addition, we analyze the accounts of tenants in bankruptcy, and we estimate the recovery of pre-petition and post-petition claims. Our reported net income is
directly affected by our estimate of the recoverability of tenant receivables.

Recognition of Gains from the Sales of Real Estate – We account for profit recognition on sales of real estate in accordance with Statement 66. In summary,
profits from sales of real estate are not recognized under the full accrual method by us unless a sale is consummated; the buyer’s initial and continuing investment
is adequate to demonstrate a commitment to pay for the property; a receivable, if applicable, is not subject to future subordination; we have transferred to the
buyer the usual risks and rewards of ownership; and we do not have substantial continuing involvement with the property.
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We sell shopping center properties to joint ventures in exchange for cash equal to the fair value of the percentage interest owned by our partners. We have
accounted for those sales as “partial sales” and recognized gains on those partial sales in the period the properties were sold to the extent of the percentage interest
sold under the guidance of Statement 66, and in the case of certain partnerships, we apply a more restrictive method of recognizing gains, as discussed further
below. The gains and operations associated with properties sold to these partnerships are not classified as discontinued operations because we continue to partially
own and manage these shopping centers.

As of June 30, 2009, four of our DIK-JVs give either partner the unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and, upon such an election, receive a
distribution in-kind of the assets of the partnership equal to its respective ownership interests. The liquidation provisions require that all of the properties owned
by the partnership be appraised to determine their respective and collective fair values. As a general rule, if we initiate the liquidation process, our partner has the
right to choose the first property that it will receive in liquidation with the Company having the right to choose the next property that it will receive in liquidation;
if our partner initiates the liquidation process, the order of the selection process is reversed. The process then continues with alternating selection of properties by
each partner until the balance of each partner’s capital account on a fair value basis has been distributed. After the final selection, to the extent that the fair value
of properties in the DIK-JV is not distributable in a manner that equals the balance of each partner’s capital account, a cash payment would be made to the other
partner by the partner receiving a fair value in excess of its capital account. The partners may also elect to liquidate some or all of the properties through sales
rather than through the DIK process.

We have concluded that these DIK dissolution provisions constitute in-substance call/put options under the guidance of Statement 66, and represent a form
of continuing involvement with respect to property that we sold to these partnerships, limiting our recognition of gain related to the partial sale. This more
restrictive method of gain recognition, the Restricted Gain Method, considers our potential ability to receive property through a DIK on which partial gain has
been recognized, and ensures, as discussed below, maximum gain deferral upon sale to a DIK-JV. We have applied the Restricted Gain Method to partial sales of
property to partnerships that contain such unilateral DIK provisions.

Under current guidance, (Statement 66, paragraph 25), profit shall be recognized by a method determined by the nature and extent of the seller’s continuing
involvement and the profit recognized shall be reduced by the maximum exposure to loss. We have concluded that the Restricted Gain Method accomplishes this
objective.

Under the Restricted Gain Method, for purposes of gain deferral, we consider the aggregate pool of properties sold into the DIK-JV as well as the aggregate
pool of properties which will be distributed in the DIK process. As a result, upon the sale of properties to a DIK-JV, we perform a hypothetical DIK liquidation
assuming that we would choose only those properties that we have sold to the DIK-JV in an amount equal to our capital account. For purposes of calculating the
gain to be deferred, the Company assumes that it will select properties in a DIK liquidation that would otherwise have generated the highest gain to the Company
when originally sold to the DIK-JV and includes for such determination the fair value in properties that could be received in excess of its capital account. The
deferred gain to be recorded upon a sale of a property to a DIK-JV is calculated whenever a property is sold to the DIK-JV by us. During the periods when there
are no property sales to a DIK-JV, the deferred gain is not recalculated.

Because the contingency associated with the possibility of receiving a particular property back upon liquidation, which forms the basis of the Restricted
Gain Method, is not satisfied at the property level, but at the aggregate level, no gain is recognized on property sold by the DIK-JV to a third party or received by
the Company upon actual dissolution. Instead, the property received upon actual dissolution is recorded at the Company’s historical cost investment in the DIK-
JV on the date of dissolution, reduced by the deferred gain.

Capitalization of Costs – We capitalize the acquisition of land, the construction of buildings and other specifically identifiable development costs incurred
by recording them into properties in development in our accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and account for them in accordance
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with SFAS No. 67, “Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects” (“Statement 67”) and EITF 97-11, “Accounting for Internal Costs
Relating to Real Estate Property Acquisitions” (“EITF 97-11”). In summary, Statement 67 establishes that a rental project changes from non-operating to
operating when it is substantially completed and held available for occupancy. At that time, costs should no longer be capitalized. Other development costs
include pre-development costs essential to the development of the property, as well as, interest, real estate taxes, and direct employee costs incurred during the
development period. Pre-development costs are incurred prior to land acquisition during the due diligence phase and include contract deposits, legal, engineering
and other professional fees related to evaluating the feasibility of developing a shopping center. At June 30, 2009, we had $7.2 million of capitalized pre-
development costs of which $1.0 million represented refundable contract deposits. If we determine that the development of a specific project undergoing due
diligence is no longer probable, we immediately expense all related capitalized pre-development costs not considered recoverable. During the six months ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008, we expensed pre-development costs of approximately $298,000 and $759,000, respectively, recorded in other expenses in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. In accordance with SFAS No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost” (“Statement 34”), interest costs are
capitalized into each development project based on applying our weighted average borrowing rate to that portion of the actual development costs expended. We
cease interest cost capitalization when the property is no longer being developed or is available for occupancy upon substantial completion of tenant
improvements, but in no event would we capitalize interest on the project beyond 12 months after substantial completion of the building shell. During the six
months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, we capitalized interest of $11.9 million and $18.8 million, respectively, on our development projects. We have a staff of
employees (the “Investment Group”) who support our development program. All direct internal costs attributable to these development activities are capitalized
as part of each development project. During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, we capitalized $5.4 million and $20.4 million, respectively, of direct
costs incurred by the Investment Group. The capitalization of costs is directly related to the actual level of development activity occurring. As a result of the
current economic downturn, development activity slowed significantly during 2009 resulting in a reduction in capitalized costs which increased general and
administrative expenses. Also, if accounting standards issued in the future were to limit the amount of internal costs that may be capitalized we could incur
additional increases in general and administrative expenses which would further reduce net income.

Real Estate Acquisitions - Upon acquisition of operating real estate properties, we estimate the fair value of acquired tangible assets (consisting of land,
building and improvements), and identified intangible assets and liabilities (consisting of above- and below-market leases, in-place leases and tenant
relationships) and assumed debt in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“Statement 141”) as amended by SFAS No. 141(R) “Business
Combinations” (“Statement 141(R)”) and adopted by the Company in January 2009. Based on these estimates, we allocate the purchase price to the applicable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. We utilize methods similar to those used by independent appraisers in
estimating the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities. We evaluate the useful lives of amortizable intangible assets each reporting period and account for any
changes in estimated useful lives over the revised remaining useful life.

Valuation of Real Estate Investments - Our long-lived assets, primarily real estate held for investment, are carried at cost unless circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate such
an evaluation is warranted. The review involves a number of assumptions and estimates used to determine whether impairment exists and if so, to what extent.
Depending on the asset, we use varying methods to determine fair value of the asset. If we determine that the carrying amount of a property is not recoverable and
exceeds its fair value, we will write down the asset to fair value. For properties to be “held and used” for long term investment we estimate undiscounted future
cash flows over the expected investment term including the estimated future value of the asset upon sale at the end of the investment period. Future value is
generally determined by applying a market-based capitalization rate to the estimated future net operating income in the final year of the expected investment term.
If after applying this method a property is determined to be impaired, we determine the
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provision for impairment based upon applying a market capitalization rate to current estimated net operating income as if the sale were to occur immediately. For
properties “held for sale”, we estimate current resale values by market through appraisal information and other market data less expected costs to sell. In
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18 “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock” (“APB 18”) and EITF 08-
6, “Equity Method Investment Accounting Considerations” (“EITF 08-6”), a loss in value of an investment under the equity method of accounting, which is other
than a temporary decline, must be recognized. In the case of our investments in unconsolidated real estate partnerships, we calculate the present value of our
investment by discounting estimated future cash flows over the expected term of investment. These methods of determining fair value can fluctuate significantly
as a result of a number of factors, including changes in the general economy of those markets in which we operate, our estimated holding period of the property,
tenant credit quality, and demand for new retail stores. If as a result of a change in our strategy for a specific property which we own directly or through our co-
investment partnerships, a property previously classified as held and used is changed to held for sale, or if its estimated holding period changes, such change
could cause us to evaluate that property as impaired and a provision for impairment in relation to that property would be recorded by us either directly or through
a reduction of our equity in co-investment partnerships.

Discontinued Operations - The application of current accounting principles that govern the classification of any of our properties as held-for-sale on the
balance sheet, or the presentation of results of operations and gains on the sale of these properties as discontinued, requires management to make certain
significant judgments. In evaluating whether a property meets the criteria set forth by SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” (“Statement 144”), we make a determination as to the point in time whether it is probable that a sale will be consummated. Given the nature of real estate
sales contracts, it is not unusual for such contracts to allow potential buyers a period of time to evaluate the property prior to formal acceptance of the contract. In
addition, certain other matters critical to the final sale, such as financing arrangements often remain pending even upon contract acceptance. As a result,
properties under contract may not close within the expected time period, or may not close at all. Therefore, any properties categorized as held-for-sale represent
only those properties that management has determined are probable to close within the requirements set forth in Statement 144. In order to determine if the results
of operations and gain on sale should be reflected as discontinued operations, prior to the sale, we evaluate the extent of involvement and significance of cash
flows the sale will have with a property after the sale. Consistent with Statement 144, any property sold in which we have significant continuing involvement or
cash flows (most often sales to co-investment partnerships in which we continue to manage the property) is not considered to be discontinued. In addition, any
property which we sell to an unrelated third party, but which we retain a property management function, is not considered discontinued. Therefore, based on our
evaluation of Statement 144 and in accordance with EITF 03-13 “Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement No. 144 in Determining Whether
to Report Discontinued Operations” (“EITF 03-13”), only properties sold, or to be sold, to unrelated third parties, where we will have no significant continuing
involvement or significant cash flows are classified as discontinued. In accordance with EITF 87-24 “Allocation of Interest to Discontinued Operations” (“EITF
87-24”), its operations, including any mortgage interest and gain on sale, are reported in discontinued operations so that the operations are clearly distinguished.
Prior periods are also reclassified to reflect the operations of these properties as discontinued operations. When we sell operating properties to our joint ventures
or to third parties, and will have continuing involvement, the operations and gains on sales are included in income from continuing operations. If circumstances
arise that previously were considered unlikely and, as a result, we decide not to sell a property previously classified as held for sale, the property is reclassified as
held and used and is measured individually at the lower of its (a) carrying amount before the property was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation
and amortization expense that would have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used or (b) the fair value at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell. Any required adjustment to the carrying amount of the property reclassified as held and used is included in income from
continuing operations in the period of the subsequent decision not to sell. If a property is reclassified as held and used, the results of operations of the property
previously reported in discontinued operations is reclassified and included in income from continuing operations for all periods presented.
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Investments in Real Estate Partnerships – In addition to owning real estate directly, we invest in real estate through our co-investment partnerships. Joint
venturing provides us with a capital source to acquire real estate, and to earn our pro-rata share of the net income or loss from the co-investment partnerships in
addition to fees for services. As asset and property manager, we conduct the business of the Unconsolidated Properties held in the co-investment partnerships in
the same way that we conduct the business of the Consolidated Properties that are wholly-owned; therefore, the Critical Accounting Policies as described are also
applicable to our investments in the co-investment partnerships. We account for all investments in which we do not have a controlling financial ownership interest
using the equity method. We have determined that these investments are not variable interest entities as defined in FIN 46(R) and do not require consolidation
under EITF 04-5 or SOP 78-9, and therefore, are subject to the voting interest model in determining our basis of accounting. Decisions, including property
acquisitions and dispositions, financings, certain leasing arrangements, annual budgets and dissolution of the ventures are subject to the approval of all partners,
or in the case of the Fund, its advisory committee.

Income Tax Status - The prevailing assumption underlying the operation of our business is that we will continue to operate in order to qualify as a REIT, as
defined under the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). We are required to meet certain income and asset tests on a periodic basis to ensure that we continue to
qualify as a REIT. As a REIT, we are allowed to reduce taxable income by all or a portion of our distributions to stockholders. We evaluate the transactions that
we enter into and determine their impact on our REIT status. Determining our taxable income, calculating distributions, and evaluating transactions requires us to
make certain judgments and estimates as to the positions we take in our interpretation of the Code. Because many types of transactions are susceptible to varying
interpretations under federal and state income tax laws and regulations, our positions are subject to change at a later date upon final determination by the taxing
authorities, however, we reassess such positions at each reporting period.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168 “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles - A Replacement of FASB Statement No. 162” (“Statement 168”). Statement 168 establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification
(“Codification”) as the single source of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities. Statement 168 and the Codification are effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after
September 15, 2009 and the adoption of this statement will not have any effect on us other than updated references within our accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167 “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)” (“Statement 167”). Statement 167 changes how a reporting
entity determines when an entity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting (or similar rights) should be consolidated. The determination
of whether a reporting entity is required to consolidate another entity is based on, among other things, the other entity’s purpose and design and the reporting
entity’s ability to direct the activities of the other entity that most significantly impact the other entity’s economic performance. Statement 167 will be effective
January 1, 2010 and early application is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165 “Subsequent Events” (“Statement 165”). This Statement establishes principles and requirements for
subsequent events. In particular, this Statement sets forth a) the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a reporting entity shall evaluate
events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, b) the circumstances under which an entity shall recognize
events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements, and c) the disclosures that an entity shall make about events or transactions
that occurred after the balance sheet date. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. We
adopted this Statement on June 30, 2009.
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Results from Operations

Comparison of the three months ended June 30, 2009 to 2008:

At June 30, 2009, on a Combined Basis, we were operating or developing 409 shopping centers, as compared to 440 shopping centers at December 31,
2008. We identify our shopping centers as either properties in development or operating properties. Properties in development are defined as properties that are in
the construction or initial lease-up process and have not reached their initial full occupancy (reaching full occupancy generally means achieving at least 95%
leased and tenants are paying rent on newly constructed or renovated GLA unless a prescribed period of time expires since anchor opening at which time they are
no longer considered development). At June 30, 2009, on a Combined Basis, we were developing 41 properties, as compared to 45 properties at December 31,
2008.

Our revenues decreased by $4.5 million, or 3.7%, to $116.5 million in 2009 as summarized in the following table (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change  
Minimum rent   $ 86,341  84,906  1,435  
Percentage rent    307  281  26  
Recoveries from tenants and other income    22,915  23,767  (852) 
Management, acquisition, and other fees    6,898  11,966  (5,068) 

          
 

Total revenues   $116,461  120,920  (4,459) 
          

 

The decrease in revenues was primarily related to the $3.9 million Contingent Acquisition fee from MCWR II recognized and earned in June 2008 as well
as a decrease in the number of properties being managed as a result of the MCWR I in-process liquidation. These decreases are partially offset by an increase in
minimum rent from properties distributed to us from the MCWR I liquidation. In addition to collecting minimum rent from our tenants, we also collect percentage
rent based upon their sales volumes, which remained flat as compared to 2008. Recoveries from tenants represent reimbursements from tenants for their pro-rata
share of the operating, maintenance, and real estate tax expenses that we incur to operate our shopping centers. The occupancy level of our operating properties
(excluding those in development) was 93.0% at June 30, 2009 vs. 94.6% at June 30, 2008, which caused a corresponding reduction in our expense recoveries. The
occupancy decline is directly related to the continuation of the current recession as financially distressed tenants default on lease payments and close stores.
Although the renewal of expiring leases approximates 72.8%, rental rates on leases executed declined 3.8% as compared to the previous rental rates earned on the
same GLA under previous leases. We anticipate that occupancy levels in our operating properties could decline to 90.0% by the end of 2009, and rental rates on
newly executed leases could decline by 4.0%, both of which would result in reduced revenues through the remainder of 2009.

We earn fees, at market-based rates, for asset management, disposition, property management, leasing, acquisition, and financing services that we provide
to our co-investment partnerships and third parties summarized as follows (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change 
Asset management fees   $2,043  2,918  (875) 
Property management fees    3,675  3,921  (246) 
Leasing commissions    647  632  15  
Acquisition and financing fees    442  4,312  (3,870) 
Other fees    91  183  (92) 

          
 

  $6,898  11,966  (5,068) 
          

 

The decrease in management, acquisition, and other fees is primarily related to the $3.9 million Contingent Acquisition fee from MCWR II described
above and a decrease in the number of properties managed for MCWR I as the liquidation of that joint venture continues through 2009.
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Our operating expenses increased by $7.8 million, or 11.6%, to $74.5 million in 2009 related to increased operating and maintenance costs, depreciation
expense, and the provision for doubtful accounts offset by a decrease in general and administrative expense as further described below. The following table
summarizes our operating expenses (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change 
Operating, maintenance and real estate taxes   $29,705  26,599  3,106  
General and administrative    9,292  13,153  (3,861) 
Depreciation and amortization    29,843  26,294  3,549  
Provision for doubtful accounts    4,769  53  4,716  
Other expenses, net    929  669  260  

          
 

Total operating expenses   $74,538  66,768  7,770  
          

 

Increases in operating, maintenance, and real estate taxes and depreciation and amortization expense are primarily related to the four properties distributed
to us from MCWR I, recently completed developments commencing operations in the current year, and general increases in expenses incurred by the operating
properties. Approximately 71% of these costs are recovered from our tenants through reimbursements included in our revenues. General and administrative
expense decreased as a result of reductions to estimated incentive compensation directly tied to performance targets such as earnings, shareholder return indexes
and new investment activity. During the three months ended June 30, 2009, we experienced a significant increase in tenant defaults, as well as, a deterioration in
tenant receivable collection rates, as compared to historical collection rates. As a result, we have increased the allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for
these specifically identified tenant defaults and we have adjusted the collectibility rates used to estimate the general reserve to reflect such deterioration in
collection rates.

The following table presents the change in interest expense from 2009 to 2008 (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change 
Interest on Unsecured credit facilities   $ 1,614   3,310   (1,696) 
Interest on notes payable    30,408   30,251   157  
Capitalized interest    (5,559)  (9,451)  3,892  
Interest income    (823)  (657)  (166) 

    
 

  
 

  
 

  $25,640   23,453   2,187  
    

 

  

 

  

 

Interest on Unsecured credit facilities decreased by $1.7 million as a result of lower outstanding balances on our credit facilities in 2009 as compared to
2008. Capitalized interest declined as development projects were completed and began operating and no new developments began construction.

During the three months ended June 30, 2009, we did not have any gains on sale included in continuing operations. There were no property sales to co-
investment partnerships for the three months ended June 30, 2009 or 2008.

During the three months ended June 30, 2009, we recorded a provision for impairment of $2.4 million on two properties in development and two out-
parcels.

Our equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships decreased by $27.3 million during 2009 as follows (in thousands):
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   Ownership  2009   2008   Change  
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency (MCWR I)   25.00%  $ (24)  634   (658) 
Macquarie CountryWide Direct (MCWR I)   25.00%   15   138   (123) 
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency II (MCWR II)   24.95%   (25,979)  (611)  (25,368) 
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency III (MCWR III)   24.95%   84   20   64  
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency-DESCO (MCWR-DESCO)   16.35%   (288)  (167)  (121) 
Columbia Regency Retail Partners (Columbia I)   20.00%   (164)  575   (739) 
Columbia Regency Partners II (Columbia II)   20.00%   (21)  (14)  (7) 
Cameron Village LLC (Cameron)   30.00%   (112)  39   (151) 
RegCal, LLC (RegCal)   25.00%   43   133   (90) 
Regency Retail Partners (the Fund)   20.00%   (106)  46   (152) 
Other investments in real estate partnerships   50.00%   339   329   10  

     
 

  
 

  
 

Total    $(26,213)  1,122   (27,335) 
     

 

  

 

  

 

The decrease in our equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships is primarily related to the recording of a provision for impairment of
$99.8 million at MCWR II on 13 properties targeted for sale over the next three years. Our share of this provision for impairment was $24.9 million. These
properties were previously expected to be held and used long term; however, as a result of MCW’s sale of a portion of its partnership interest in MCWR II to
GRI, the sale strategy was revised in June 2009.

Income from discontinued operations was $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009 related to the operations of shopping centers sold or
classified as held-for-sale in 2009 and 2008. Income from discontinued operations was $6.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 related to the sale of
two properties in development sold to unrelated parties for net cash proceeds of $19.8 million and the operations of shopping centers sold or classified as held-
for-sale in 2009 and 2008. In compliance with Statement 144, if we sell a property or classify a property as held-for-sale, we are required to reclassify its
operations into discontinued operations for all prior periods which results in a reclassification of amounts previously reported as continuing operations into
discontinued operations.

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders for the three months ended decreased $49.0 million to a net loss of $17.2 million in 2009 as
compared with net income of $31.9 million in 2008 primarily related to the MCWR II provision for impairment, a $2.4 million provision for impairment recorded
on two properties in development and two out-parcels, an increase in our allowance for doubtful accounts of $4.3 million, and higher operating expenses, as
discussed above. Diluted earnings per share was a net loss of $.23 in 2009 as compared to net income of $.45 in 2008 or 151.1% lower.

Comparison of the six months ended June 30, 2009 to 2008:

Our revenues increased by approximately $3,000, or less than 1%, to $237.4 million in 2009 as summarized in the following table (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change 
Minimum rent   $173,407  167,941  5,466  
Percentage rent    1,007  1,081  (74) 
Recoveries from tenants and other income    48,286  47,917  369  
Management, acquisition, and other fees    14,655  20,413  (5,758) 

          
 

Total revenues   $237,355  237,352  3  
          

 

The increase in revenues was primarily related to the revenues generated from the four properties distributed to us as a result of the MCWR I liquidation
offset by the $3.9 million Contingent Acquisition fee from MCWR II recognized and earned in June 2008 as well as a decrease in asset management and property
management fees as a result of the MCWR I liquidation. Percentage rent declined and is directly related to lower retail sales of those tenants who pay percentage
rent.
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Recoveries from tenants represent reimbursements from tenants for their pro-rata share of the operating, maintenance, and real estate tax expenses that we incur to
operate our shopping centers.

We earn fees, at market-based rates, for asset management, disposition, property management, leasing, acquisition, and financing services that we provide
to our co-investment partnerships and third parties summarized as follows (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change 
Asset management fees   $ 4,642  5,815  (1,173) 
Property management fees    7,615  8,150  (535) 
Leasing commissions    1,167  1,315  (148) 
Acquisition and financing fees    1,112  4,880  (3,768) 
Other fees    119  253  (134) 

          
 

  $14,655  20,413  (5,758) 
          

 

The decrease in management, acquisition, and other fees is primarily related to the $3.9 million Contingent Acquisition fee from MCWR II recognized in
2008 and a decrease in the number of properties managed as a result of the MCWR I liquidation previously discussed.

Our operating expenses increased by $15.9 million, or 11.9%, to $149.6 million in 2009 related to increased operating and maintenance costs, depreciation
expense, and the provision for doubtful accounts offset by a decrease in general and administrative expense as further described below. The following table
summarizes our operating expenses (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change  
Operating, maintenance and real estate taxes   $ 60,021  53,854  6,167  
General and administrative    25,177  27,276  (2,099) 
Depreciation and amortization    57,925  51,029  6,896  
Provision for doubtful accounts    5,269  48  5,221  
Other expenses, net    1,218  1,466  (248) 

          
 

Total operating expenses   $ 149,610  133,673  15,937  
          

 

The increases in operating, maintenance, and real estate taxes, and depreciation and amortization expense, are primarily related to the four properties
distributed to us as a result of the MCWR I in-process liquidation, recently completed developments commencing operations in the current year, and general
increases in expenses incurred by the operating properties. Approximately 72%-74% of these costs are expected to be recovered from our tenants through
reimbursements included in our revenues. General and administrative expense decreased as a result of reductions to estimated incentive compensation directly
tied to performance targets, such as earnings, shareholder return indexes and new investment activity. This decrease is partially offset by restructuring charges of
$2.2 million for employee severance and benefits related to employee reductions across various functional areas. During the three months ended June 30, 2009,
we experienced a significant increase in tenant defaults, as well as, deterioration in tenant receivable collection rates, as compared to historical collection rates. As
a result, we have increased the allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for these specifically identified tenant defaults and we have adjusted the collectibility
rates used to estimate the general reserve to reflect further deterioration in collection rates.
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The following table presents the change in interest expense from 2009 to 2008 (in thousands):
 
   2009   2008   Change 
Interest on Unsecured credit facilities   $ 3,971   6,251   (2,280) 
Interest on notes payable    61,834   60,114   1,720  
Capitalized interest    (11,918)  (18,838)  6,920  
Interest income    (1,729)  (1,537)  (192) 

    
 

  
 

  
 

  $ 52,158   45,990   6,168  
    

 

  

 

  

 

Interest on Unsecured credit facilities decreased by $2.3 million as a result of lower outstanding balances on our credit facilities in 2009 as compared to
2008. Interest on notes payable increased by $1.7 million due to mortgage debt assumed on the properties distributed as a result of the MCWR I in-process
liquidation. Capitalized interest also declined as development projects were completed and began operating and no new developments began construction.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, we did not have any gains on sale of real estate included in continuing operations. During the six months
ended June 30, 2008, gains on the sale of real estate included in continuing operations were $2.9 million which included $1.7 million from the sale of six out-
parcels for net proceeds of $32.8 million and a $1.2 million gain recognized on two out-parcels originally deferred at the time of sale. There were no property
sales to co-investment partnerships for the six months ended June 30, 2009 or 2008.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, we recorded a provision for impairment of $2.4 million on two properties in development and two out-parcels
whereas during the six months ended June 30, 2008, we recorded a provision for impairment of approximately $716,000 on one out-parcel.

Our equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships decreased by $28.1 million during 2009 as follows (in thousands):
 
   Ownership  2009   2008   Change  
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency (MCWR I)   25.00%  $ 956   1,318   (362) 
Macquarie CountryWide Direct (MCWR I)   25.00%   —     273   (273) 
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency II (MCWR II)   24.95%   (26,066)  (857)  (25,209) 
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency III (MCWR III)   24.95%   82   28   54  
Macquarie CountryWide-Regency-DESCO (MCWR-DESCO)   16.35%   (394)  (370)  (24) 
Columbia Regency Retail Partners (Columbia I)   20.00%   288   1,107   (819) 
Columbia Regency Partners II (Columbia II)   20.00%   (4)  26   (30) 
Cameron Village LLC (Cameron)   30.00%   (150)  168   (318) 
RegCal, LLC (RegCal)   25.00%   150   1,256   (1,106) 
Regency Retail Partners (the Fund)   20.00%   (216)  172   (388) 
Other investments in real estate partnerships   50.00%   1,043   636   407  

     
 

  
 

  
 

Total    $ (24,311)  3,757   (28,068) 
     

 

  

 

  

 

As discussed above within our three month results from operations, the decrease in our equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships is
primarily related to our share of the $99.8 million provision for impairment recorded at MCWR II.

Income from discontinued operations was $5.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 related to the sale of one property in development sold to an
unrelated party for net cash proceeds of $4.9 million, net of a note receivable taken by us of $8.9 million, and the operations of shopping centers sold or classified
as held-for-sale in 2009 and 2008. Income from discontinued operations was $7.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 related to the sale of two
properties in development sold to unrelated parties for net cash proceeds of $19.8 million and the operations of shopping centers sold or
 

70



Table of Contents

classified as held-for-sale in 2009 and 2008. In compliance with Statement 144, if we sell a property or classify a property as held-for-sale, we are required to
reclassify its operations into discontinued operations for all prior periods which results in a reclassification of amounts previously reported as continuing
operations into discontinued operations.

Net income attributable to common stockholders for the six months ended decreased $56.2 million to $2.4 million in 2009 as compared with net income of
$58.6 million in 2008. This decrease is primarily related to the decrease in equity in income (loss) of investments in real estate partnerships related to the MCWR
II provision for impairment, an increase in provision for impairment several properties owned directly by us, lower gains from the sale of real estate, an increase
in our allowance for doubtful accounts, and higher operating expenses, as discussed above. Diluted earnings per share was $.03 in 2009 as compared to $.83 in
2008 or 96.4% lower.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations as they apply to our shopping centers pertaining to chemicals used by the dry cleaning
industry, the existence of asbestos in older shopping centers, and underground petroleum storage tanks. We believe that the tenants who currently operate dry
cleaning plants or gas stations do so in accordance with current laws and regulations. Generally, we use all legal means to cause tenants to remove dry cleaning
plants from our shopping centers or convert them to non-chlorinated solvent systems. Where available, we have applied and been accepted into state-sponsored
environmental programs. We have a blanket environmental insurance policy that covers us against third-party liabilities and remediation costs on shopping
centers that currently have no known environmental contamination. We have also placed environmental insurance, where possible, on specific properties with
known contamination, in order to mitigate our environmental risk. We monitor the shopping centers containing environmental issues and in certain cases
voluntarily remediate the sites. We also have legal obligations to remediate certain sites and we are in the process of doing so. We estimate the cost associated
with these legal obligations to be approximately $2.6 million, all of which has been reserved. We believe that the ultimate disposition of currently known
environmental matters will not have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity, or operations; however, we can give no assurance that existing
environmental studies with respect to our shopping centers have revealed all potential environmental liabilities; that any previous owner, occupant or tenant did
not create any material environmental condition not known to us; that the current environmental condition of the shopping centers will not be affected by tenants
and occupants, by the condition of nearby properties, or by unrelated third parties; or that changes in applicable environmental laws and regulations or their
interpretation will not result in additional environmental liability to us.

Inflation/Deflation

Inflation has been historically low and has had a minimal impact on the operating performance of our shopping centers; however, more recent data suggests
inflation has been increasing and may become a greater concern in the current economy. Substantially all of our long-term leases contain provisions designed to
mitigate the adverse impact of inflation. Such provisions include clauses enabling us to receive percentage rent based on tenants’ gross sales, which generally
increase as prices rise; and/or escalation clauses, which generally increase rental rates during the terms of the leases. Such escalation clauses are often related to
increases in the consumer price index or similar inflation indices. In addition, many of our leases are for terms of less than ten years, which permits us to seek
increased rents upon re-rental at market rates. However, during deflationary periods such as the recession that we are currently experiencing, market rents can
decline. Most of our leases require tenants to pay their pro-rata share of operating expenses, including common-area maintenance, real estate taxes, insurance and
utilities, thereby reducing our exposure to increases in costs and operating expenses resulting from inflation.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market Risk

We are exposed to two significant components of interest rate risk. Our Line has a variable interest rate that is based upon LIBOR plus a spread of 40 basis
points and the term loan within our Term Facility has a variable interest rate based upon LIBOR plus a spread of 105 basis points. LIBOR rates charged on our
Unsecured credit facilities change monthly. Based upon the current balance of our Unsecured credit facilities, a 1% increase in LIBOR would equate to an
additional $2.3 million of interest costs per year. The spread on the Unsecured credit facilities is dependent upon maintaining specific credit ratings. If our credit
ratings were downgraded, the spread on the Unsecured credit facilities would increase, resulting in higher interest costs. We are also exposed to higher interest
rates when we refinance our existing long-term fixed rate debt. The objective of our interest rate risk management is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on
earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, we borrow primarily at fixed interest rates and may enter into
derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, caps, or treasury locks in order to mitigate our interest rate risk on a related financial instrument. We
do not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for speculative purposes.

We have $428.3 million of fixed rate debt maturing in 2010 and 2011 that has a weighted average fixed interest rate of 8.08%, which includes $400.0
million of unsecured long-term debt. During 2006 we entered into four forward-starting interest rate swaps (the “Swaps”) totaling $396.7 million with fixed rates
of 5.399%, 5.415%, 5.399%, and 5.415%. We designated these Swaps as cash flow hedges to fix the future interest rates on $400.0 million of the financing
expected to occur in 2010 and 2011. As a result of a decline in 10 year Treasury interest rates since the inception of the Swaps, the fair value of the Swaps as
of June 30, 2009 is reflected as a liability of $27.6 million in our accompanying consolidated balance sheet. It remains highly probable that the forecasted
transactions will occur as projected at the inception of the Swaps and therefore, the change in fair value of the Swaps is reflected in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. To the extent that future 10-year Treasury rates (at the future settlement
dates) are higher than current rates, this liability will decline. If a liability exists at the dates the Swaps are settled, the liability will be amortized over the term of
the respective debt issuances as additional interest expense in addition to the stated interest rates on the new issuances. On April 16, 2009, we paid $20.0 million
to settle and partially settle $106.0 million of our $396.7 million of interest rate swaps in place to hedge forecasted debt. On July 1, 2009, we closed on mortgage
loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of 7.75% and a 10-year term. For $90.7 million of the remaining Swaps, we continue to
expect to issue new secured or unsecured debt for a term of 7 to 12 years during the period between June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2010. For $200.0 million of the
remaining Swaps, we continue to expect to issue new debt for a term of 7 to 12 years during the period between March 30, 2010 and March 30, 2011. We
continuously monitor the capital markets and evaluate our ability to issue new debt to repay maturing debt or fund our commitments. Based upon the current
capital markets, our current credit ratings, and the number of high quality, unencumbered properties that we own which could collateralize borrowings, we expect
that we will be able to successfully issue new secured or unsecured debt to fund our obligations. However, in the current environment, we expect interest rates on
new issuances to be significantly higher than on historical issuances. An increase of 1.0% in the interest rate of new debt issues above that of maturing debt would
result in additional annual interest expense of $4.0 million in addition to the impact of the annual amortization that would be incurred as a result of settling the
Swaps.

Our interest rate risk is monitored using a variety of techniques. The table below presents the principal cash flows (in thousands), weighted average interest
rates of remaining debt, and the fair value of total debt (in thousands) as of June 30, 2009, by year of expected maturity to evaluate the expected cash flows and
sensitivity to interest rate changes. Although the average interest rate for variable rate debt is included in the table, those rates represent rates that existed at
June 30, 2009 and are subject to change on a monthly basis.
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The table incorporates only those exposures that exist as of June 30, 2009 and does not consider those exposures or positions that could arise after that date.
Since firm commitments are not presented, the table has limited predictive value. As a result, our ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate
fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during the period, our hedging strategies at that time, and actual interest rates.
 

   2009   2010   2011   2012   2013   Thereafter   Total   
Fair

Value
Fixed rate debt   $2,660   182,436   256,567   255,609   21,892   1,120,208   1,839,372  1,243,738
Average interest rate for all fixed rate debt    6.36%  6.14%  5.83%  5.62%  5.60%  5.69%  —    —  
Variable rate LIBOR debt   $5,049   —     227,667   —     —     —     232,716  227,631
Average interest rate for all variable rate debt    1.43%  1.43%  —     —     —     —     —    —  
 

Average interest rates at the end of each year presented.

The fair value of total debt in the table above is $1.5 billion versus the face value of $2.1 billion, which suggests that as new debt is issued in the future to
repay maturing debt, the cost of new debt issuances will be higher than the current cost of existing debt.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q to ensure information required to be disclosed in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time period specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.
These disclosure controls and procedures include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file
or submit is accumulated and communicated to management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting identified in connection with this evaluation that occurred during
the second quarter of 2009 and that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION
 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are a party to various legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of our business. We are not currently involved in any litigation nor to our
knowledge, is any litigation threatened against us, the outcome of which would, in our judgment based on information currently available to us, have a material
adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Other than the risk factors disclosed herein, there have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in Item 1A. of Part I of our Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008.

Our net income depends on the success and continued presence of our tenants.

Our net income could be adversely affected if we fail to lease significant portions of our new developments or in the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of any
anchor stores or of a significant number of our non-anchor tenants within a shopping center. The adverse impact on our net income may be greater than the loss of
rent from the resulting unoccupied space because co-tenancy clauses may allow other tenants to modify or terminate their rent or lease obligations. Co-tenancy
clauses have several variants: they may allow a tenant to postpone a store opening if certain other tenants fail to open their store; they may allow a tenant the
opportunity to close their store prior to lease expiration if another tenant closes their store prior to lease expiration; or more commonly, they may allow a tenant to
pay reduced levels of rent until a certain number of tenants open their stores within the same shopping center. As the current recession continues to depress retail
sales, we could experience reductions in rent and occupancy related to tenants exercising their co-tenancy clauses.

We may be forced to deleverage our business with our operating cash flows, which could result in the reduction of dividends to our shareholders, a
reduction in investments into our business or additional equity offerings that dilute our shareholders interests.

We depend on external financing, principally debt financing, to fund the growth of our business and to ensure that we can meet ongoing maturities of our
outstanding debt. Our access to financing depends on our credit rating, the willingness of creditors to lend to us and conditions in the capital markets. The
disruption in the capital markets that began in 2008 has continued into 2009, limiting access to financing for many companies. Without access to external
financing, we would be required to pay outstanding debt with our operating cash flows, and our operating cash flows may not be sufficient to pay our outstanding
debt as it comes due. If we are required to deleverage our business with operating cash flows, we may be forced to reduce the amount of, or eliminate altogether,
our dividends to shareholders or refrain from making investments in our business.

We and our joint ventures have a significant amount of debt maturing in 2010, 2011 and 2012. During this time period, we have $906.0 million maturing and our
joint ventures have $1.4 billion maturing (our pro-rata share is $343.0 million). In addition to finding creditors willing to lend to us, we are dependent upon our
joint venture partners contributing their share of any amount needed to repay or refinance existing debt when lenders reduce the amount of debt our joint ventures
are refinancing.

Adverse global market and economic conditions may continue to adversely affect us and could cause us to recognize additional impairment charges or
otherwise harm our performance.

Ongoing adverse market and economic conditions and market volatility will likely continue to make it difficult to value the properties and investments owned by
us and our unconsolidated joint ventures. There may be significant uncertainty in the valuation, or in the stability of the value, of such properties and
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investments that could result in a substantial decrease in the value thereof. No assurance can be given that we will be able to recover the current carrying amount
of all of our properties, investments and intangibles and those of our unconsolidated joint ventures in the future. Our failure to do so would require us to recognize
additional impairment charges for the period in which we reached that conclusion, which could materially and adversely affect us and the market price of our
common stock.

We are unable to predict whether, or to what extent or for how long, these adverse market and economic conditions will persist. The continuation and/or
intensification of these conditions may impede our ability to generate sufficient operating cash flow to pay expenses, maintain properties, pay dividends and
refinance debt.
 
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
 

(a) There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended June 30, 2009.
 

(b) None
 

(c) None
 
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The annual meeting of shareholders of Regency Centers Corporation was held on May 5, 2009.

Proposal One: The board of directors nominated eleven nominees to stand for election at the 2009 meeting and the nominees were elected by a plurality of votes
cast by shares entitled to vote at the meeting. Therefore, in accordance with the voting results listed below, the nominees were elected to serve until the 2010
annual meeting and until their successors are elected and qualified.

Proposal Two: The board of directors selected the accounting firm of KPMG LLP to serve as the independent registered public accountants for Regency for the
current fiscal year ending December 31, 2009. The firm has served as the auditors for Regency since 1993. The board of directors directed that the appointment of
the independent accountants be submitted for ratification by the shareholders at the annual meeting. Therefore, in accordance with the voting results listed below,
KPMG LLP will serve as the independent registered public accountants for Regency for the current fiscal year ending December 31, 2009.
 

Proposal One:

  

Shareholders approved the re-election of all
eleven members of the board of directors to
serve until the 2010 annual meeting.   

 
Nominee   For   Withheld
Martin E. Stein, Jr.   57,065,077  3,813,227
Raymond L. Bank   59,916,152  962,152
C. Ronald Blankenship   60,380,018  498,286
A. R. Carpenter   59,779,494  1,098,810
J. Dix Druce   59,777,657  1,100,647
Mary Lou Fiala   58,977,887  1,900,417
Bruce M. Johnson   56,360,126  4,518,178
Douglas S. Luke   59,780,427  1,097,878
John C. Schweitzer   60,379,614  498,690
Brian M. Smith   58,921,977  1,956,327
Thomas G. Wattles   60,378,050  500,254
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Proposal Two:

  

Shareholders approved the ratification of
the appointment of KPMG as Regency’s
independent registered public accountants
for the current year ending December 31, 2009.   

 
For  Against  Abstained

60,291,064  584,051  3,187

There were no broker non-votes on either proposal since brokers who hold shares for the accounts for their clients had discretionary authority to vote such shares
with respect to either proposal.
 
Item 5. Other Information

None
 
Item 6. Exhibits
 
Exhibit No.   Description

31.1   Rule 13a-14 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2   Rule 13a-14 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32.1   Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

32.2   Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.
 
Date: August 7, 2009   REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

   By:  /s/ Bruce M. Johnson

    

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

    /s/ J. Christian Leavitt

    

Senior Vice President and
Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a)

or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Martin E. Stein, Jr., certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Regency Centers Corporation (“registrant”);
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 
Date: August 7, 2009

/s/ Martin E. Stein, Jr.
Martin E. Stein, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a)

or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Bruce M. Johnson, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Regency Centers Corporation (“registrant”);
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 
Date: August 7, 2009

/s/ Bruce M. Johnson
Bruce M. Johnson
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Written Statement of the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. §1350, I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Regency Centers Corporation (the “Company”),
hereby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: August 7, 2009

/s/ Martin E, Stein, Jr.
Martin E. Stein, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. §1350, I, the undersigned Chief Financial Officer of Regency Centers Corporation (the “Company”),
hereby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: August 7, 2009

/s/ Bruce M. Johnson
Bruce M. Johnson
Chief Financial Officer


